I 20 4 AR [ A PRA ‘—J

KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUE

b

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(R AFETMRZ 2 BRAA)
(Stock Code Rx A5k : 01031)

2015

ANNUAL REPORT
A




Contents

Bk

Corporate Information

NEEH

Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

Management Discussion and A
EIRE R am Mo AT

Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

Report of the Directors
BEERWmE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 BN R

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Lo
EBEmkEMEEERR

Consolidated Statement of Financial

e MBI R

Statement of Financial Position

AR

= GAENEDE f '

C dated Statemen

e



Corporate Information

N T E R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Chun Lam

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman)
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan (Chairman)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Lau Man Tak

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan

AUDITORS

BDO Limited

25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Centrall
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

02 Kingston Financial Group Limited / Annual Report 2015

EER

BITES
KAWL ()
FREL L (THAH)
fAEFEL

BAFHTES
BEEEL
gkt
RIBCERE

DNEWE
PR

BREEY
B e ()
EBE L
RECEE

FMWERS
RIS (ER)
HEHEL
BIxiEs

REZRS
EEREL ()
BIxiEse

R KL

¥ B

BRIV ERREMEHAERATA]

BB
FrEEF 11158
KEHIL 251

FEERIET
BITRT (EB) AR AT
E5 LSEYRTERAR

B TERTTCRF) RO AR AR

HEIERTT(BFE)BRAA
BIEIRITER AR



Corporate Information

N F B R

BERMUDA LEGAL ADVISERS
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Room 2901, One Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suite 2801, 28th Floor

One International Finance Centre

1 Harbour View Street

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1031

WEBSITE

http://www.kingston.com.hk

BREZLEERD
Conyers Dill & Pearman
B

IR

REEE 5 855

R 5 E%— 2901 =

AMMER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

BERETEERME

&5
GE

BRE 1S
e LI
28182801 &

FERDBEELRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BEREROBFELS R
SERHHARAT
&

ERKRER 1835
AR 221

R AD IR

1031

4t

http://www.kingston.com.hk

SRR AR ) R TR 03



Chairman’s Statement

F

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the annual performance and business development of the
Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”).

The Group generated revenue of approximately HK$2,479,274,000
for the Year, representing a significant increase of 34.2%
compared with approximately HK$1,847,685,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (“the Previous Year”). Profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the Year was approximately
HK$1,259,636,000 representing a significant increase of 63.4%
compared with approximately HK$771,060,000 for the Previous
Year. The significant growth was mainly due to the increase in
contributions from securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, margin and IPO financing business.

During the Year under review, the introduction of Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect Scheme boosted trading volume of the local
market, while the move has improved market liquidity and attracted
more investor participations in the market, so as to bring new
business opportunities for Hong Kong’s brokerage industry.
Leveraging on these positive situational factors together with the
Group’s leading position as a one-stop financial service provider,
the Group achieved a solid result with total revenue generated
from the financial service business segment of approximately
HK$1,541,338,000 for the Year (2014: HK$889,892,000),
representing a significant increase of 73.2%.

With the integration of Chinese, Western and Portuguese cultures,
Macau remains one of the world’s most popular tourist
destinations, we believe the development of tourism and gaming
business remain stable in the long run. Supported by the local
demand, the Group’s hotel (includes food and beverage) operation
contributed revenue of approximately HK$259,652,000 (2014:
HK$246,896,000), up by 5.2% year-over year. The Group’s gaming
business in Macau displayed a solid performance and contributed
revenue of approximately HK$678,284,000 (2014:
HK$710,897,000).
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking ahead, we are expecting a further upward development of
the Hong Kong securities market. With the expected arrival of
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, we foresee the trading
volume in Hong Kong stock market will continue to boom. As a
qualified and leading player in the securities and brokerage
industry, we are ready for any business opportunities exist. The
Group will also continue to leverage our strong equity capital
markets client base to capture the market share in corporate
finance advisory business and actively explore potential business
opportunities with the existing clients.

The Board is confident that both Hong Kong and Macau
economies will benefit from the sustainable economic development
in China. The Group continuously pursues various marketing and
promotional activities to perfect its membership programmes,
retaining and attracting customers. We will also strengthen our
relationship with travel agencies and offer packages and joint
promotions with business partners so as to broaden the scope of
customers of the two hotels.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to our board of directors, dedicated team of the
Group professionals for their unwavering commitment and passion
for the business for the past years. | also express my sincere
appreciation to all our valued service and business partners as
well as you the shareholder for the encouraging support.

By Order of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the result of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the
“Year”).

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of a wide range
of financial services which include securities brokerage,
underwriting and placements, margin and initial public offering
financing, corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage
and asset management services. The Group also provides gaming
and hospitality services in Macau.

Thanks to the significant increase in contributions from securities
brokerage, underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing
businesses, the Group continued to achieve fruitful results. During
the Year, total revenue recorded by the Group was approximately
HK$2,479,274,000, representing a significant increase of 34.2% as
compared to approximately HK$1,847,685,000 for the year ended
31 March 2014 (“the Previous Year”).

Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the Year
increased significantly by 63.4% to approximately
HK$1,259,636,000 (2014: HK$771,060,000). The basic earnings
per share for the Year was HK7.25 cents (2014: HK4.44 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Scheme (the “Scheme”)
launched in November 2014, has been a significant driver of the
Chinese capital market reform, giving investors a wide range of
new investment opportunities. Under the Scheme, the Hong Kong'’s
securities market provides a good investment outlet for mainland
funds and is an excellent way for mainland investors to diversify
their portfolios. The southbound flow is then boosted as Hong
Kong stocks surge to fresh seven years high as Chinese funds
flood the market.

Hong Kong stock market was well positioned for the Year. The
average daily turnover of the Hong Kong securities market was
HK$73.7 billion, representing an increase of 21.6% as compared
to HK$60.6 billion for the Previous Year. With the unique
advantages of its close proximity to China and the increasing
integration of the Hong Kong and China markets, Hong Kong’s IPO
market remains active. There were 126 newly listed companies
during the Year, as compared to 87 reported IPOs for the Previous
Year. The growing local financial market definitely played an
important role for driving up the Company’s business activities.

Credit to the favorable market environment, our team of
experienced professional executives and the strong capital base
of the Company, the Group achieved fruitful results especially
across securities brokerage, underwriting and placements, margin
and initial public offering financing.

As for Macau industry, the general operation has been affected by
China’s anti-corruption campaign, alongside with the slowdown of
number of visitors. During the Year, total gross revenue of Macau’s
gaming industry slid approximately 16.8% to MOP314.10 billion as
compared to MOP377.7 billion for the Previous Year. Nonetheless,
the Group achieved satisfactory result during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and
Placements

Securities underwriting and placement services is one of the main
revenue streams of the Group. The Group undertakes the
origination, structuring and marketing of placements of equity and
equity-related securities. It also provides across-the-board
solutions to clients’ financing needs. The Group has successfully
undertaken the roles of placing agents and underwriters for listed
companies in a wide range of industries.

Stock trading volume under the Scheme has been boosted up
especially in the first quarter of 2015, favorable for the segment’s
performance. During the Year, this segment recorded revenue of
approximately HK$427,192,000 (2014: HK$200,698,000),
representing a drastic increase of 112.9% compared to the
Previous Year, which also accounted for 27.7% (2014: 22.6%) of
the Group’s financial service segment revenue.

In line with the booming segment revenue, the brokerage
commission increased significantly from HK$37,767,000 in the
Previous Year to HK$98,784,000 in the Year.

Margin and IPO Financing

Margin and IPO financing services are provided by the Group to
complement its securities brokerage business. Margin financing is
made available to clients who have opened margin accounts with
the Group to purchase securities with funds borrowed from it to
leverage their investments. IPO financing is the grant of loans to
clients for subscriptions of shares relating to an IPO.

During the Year, revenue generated from the margin and IPO
financing segment amounted to approximately HK$1,082,742,000
(2014: HK$659,204,000), representing a significant rise of 64.2%
compared to the Previous Year, which also accounted for 70.2%
(2014: 74.1%) of the Group’s financial service segment revenue.
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Other Financial Services — Corporate Finance
Advisory Services, Futures Brokerage and Asset
Management

Complementing the securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, and margin and IPO financing, the Group also
provides a full range of financing services to its clients including
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

The Group holds licence under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to engage in advising on corporate finance activities.
The scope of services provided includes advising on corporate
finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on deal
structure and financing strategies in the context of mergers and
acquisitions, equity fund raising exercises, takeovers and other
notifiable transactions.

The Group provides brokerage services for index futures trading
on the Futures Exchange, including After Hours Futures Trading.
Clients can place orders online and through telephone.

The Group also provides portfolio management services. The asset
management business generates revenue by charging
management fees and incentive fees based on the amount of
assets under management, and returns of portfolios, respectively.

During the Year, this segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$31,404,000 (2014: HK$29,990,000), representing an increase
of approximately 4.7% as compared to the Previous Year, which
also accounted for 2.1% (2014: 3.3%) of the Group’s financial
service segment revenue.

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

Goodwill has arisen upon the Group’s acquisition of financial
services business completed in April 2011. An independent
professional valuer was engaged to perform impairment
assessment on the goodwill. It was found that the recoverable
amount of all 3 cash generating units, namely the Placing and
Underwriting segment, the Margin and IPO Financing segment and
the Corporate Finance segment, exceed their respective carrying
amount. Under this circumstance, no impairment on the goodwill is
considered necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Hotel Business

The Group’s hotel operation, mainly comprising of hotel rooms, food
and beverage sales and other rental income, managed to capture
the opportunity in the Macau tourism industry. Supported by the
local demand, the general performance of hotel business remained
steady, and the revenue for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$259,652,000 (2014: HK$246,896,000), representing an increase
of 5.2% compared to the Previous Year. Hotel business contributed
27.7% (2014: 25.8%) of the total hotel and gaming business
turnover.

The average occupancy rate of the two hotels, namely Casa Real
and Grandview, was approximately 87% (2014: 89%) and 78%
(2014: 84%) during the Year.

Gaming Business

The Group’s casino operation is run by the licence holder
Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A.. The two casinos consistently
provided solid contributions to the Group in line with the healthy
growth of the gaming industry in Macau. To strengthen customer
loyalty and attract potential ones, the Group bolstered its
membership programmes and provided a variety of incentives for
members to increase their spending in the casinos as well.

Gaming revenue, including gaming revenue and food and
beverage sales in casino, amounted to approximately
HK$678,284,000 for the Year, representing a slightly decrease of
4.6% as compared to approximately HK$710,897,000 of the
Previous Year. Gaming revenue accounted for 72.3% (2014
74.2%) of total hotel and gaming business turnover.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has 58 (2014: 59) tables in the
mass market halls, 13 (2014: 12) tables in the self-managed VIP
rooms and 224 (2014: 240) slot machines and 136 (2014: 140) live
baccarat machines in the electronic gaming halls. Live baccarat
machines brought additional crowd to the properties, achieving
synergy with the slot machine business as well.
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Trading of listed securities

During the Year, both the global and Hong Kong equity market
experienced fluctuations. The market value of the trading securities
held by the Group during the year recorded a revaluation deficit of
approximately HK$7,639,000 (2014: HK$2,425,000). As at 31
March 2015, the Group was holding trading securities of
approximately HK$38,644,000 (2014: HK$48,692,000) at market
value.

Inventory consumed

Inventory consumed represents the cost of guest supplies and food
and beverage consumed upon provision of accommodation and
catering services to the customers. During the Year, it amounted to
approximately HK$23,105,000 (2014: HK$22,175,000).

Staff costs

Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$212,983,000 (2014:
HK$190,209,000), representing a 12% increase. Such an increase
was mainly due to increase in compensation and benefits to
employee to match market rates. Packages commensurate with
employees’ qualifications and experience were provided to retain
good employees in the Group as well as to hire potential talents.

Gaming commission

Gaming commission represents amount paid as an incentive to
attract customers. The commission paid by the Group was in line
with market level. The amount decreased 7.7% from
HK$163,685,000 in the Previous Year to HK$151,032,000 in the
Year which matched with the decrease in income from gaming
segment due to the slowdown of the gaming industry in Macau.

Interest expenses for securities brokerage and
margin financing operations

To cope with the growth of securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, margin and IPO financing businesses, additional
fundings were obtained during the Year. The related interest
expenses increased significantly from HK$69,957,000 in the
Previous Year to HK$123,445,000 in the Year, representing a
76.5% increase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represent rent and rates, legal and
professional fees, advertising and Macau property tax. During the
year, it amounted to approximately HK$93,128,000 (2014:
HK$106,592,000). Overall expenses had been controlled as the
Group has been adopting a prudent cost management during the
Year.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly represent operating expenses
for gaming facilities and promotion expenses and other hotel
rooms operating expenses. During the Year, it amounted to
approximately HK$159,059,000 (2014: HK$164,675,000). The
decrease was in line with the slightly decrease in income from
gaming segment.

Impairment Loss for Intangible Assets Held for Sale
In the Previous Year, an impairment loss of HK$74,741,000 has
been recognised on the measurement of the intangible assets held
for sale to fair value less costs to sell. Details are set out in note 30
to the financial statements. No impairment loss has been
recognised during the Year. The Intangible Assets Held for Sale
has been reclassified to Intangible Assets as at 31 March 2015.

Amortisation

The amount of HK$14,132,000 (2014: nil) for the Year represented
the amortisation expenses of the Intangible Assets which has been
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of
24 years.

Finance cost

During the Year, finance cost of HK$20,200,000 represented the
effective interest expenses on the amount due to a shareholder.
The amount of HK$58,800,000 represented the effective interest
expenses on the promissory notes in the Previous Year.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Financial service segments

Looking forward, the Group is optimistic about its business growth
due to a number of positive factors. First, the expected launch of
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect will further enlarge the
investment flows from Mainland China into Hong Kong’s small and
mid-sized listed companies and further boost Hong Kong stock
markets turnover and valuation.

Second, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Scheme has
enabled investors in the respective markets to trade designated
equity securities listed in the other’s market. The program has
created momentum for the long-term development of the Hong
Kong capital market, which the Group promised to provide full
support for the Scheme.

Third, with Hong Kong's growing number of high networth
individuals seeking out superior assets management services,
huge business opportunities have been created for our assets
management arm which is licensed to provide portfolio
management services to clients. The Group is planning to expand
its experienced investment team in order to capture such business
opportunities.

In conclusion, we are convinced that Hong Kong will continue to
play a major role in the internationalisation of the Chinese stock
market and Renminbi, which is also beneficial to the local IPO and
securities market. We believe these may bring more new
advantages to the Hong Kong financial market, and we are well
equipped to explore and take actions should suitable opportunities
arise.
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Hotel and gaming segments

Although the slowdown of Macau tourism and China’s anti-
corruption campaign put pressure on the industry, the Group is
cautiously optimistic about its operation because a large part of its
segment income is derived from the local market.

Furthermore, the Group will continue to pursue various marketing
and promotion activities through comprehensive membership
programmes. Our guests enjoy excellent services within the
Group’s properties with the use of our casino package. The Group
will also continue to upgrade its programmes to attract more new
customers.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 March 2015 the shareholders’ fund and net current assets
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$17,534,208,000
(2014: HK$15,881,791,000) and approximately HK$4,020,436,000
(2014: HK$1,796,763,000) respectively. On the same date, the
Group had cash and bank balance of approximately
HK$1,772,232,000 (2014: HK$210,861,000) and the current ratio
was 1.3 (2014: 1.2).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$4,364,500,000 (2014: HK$1,324,000,000),
amounts due to shareholders of approximately HK$2,420,911,000
(2014: HK$2,847,111,000), loan from a related company of
approximately HK$5,437,965,000 (2014: HK$2,952,639,000) and
subordinated loans of approximately HK$700,000,000 (2014:
HK$700,000,000). On the same date, the net gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings less bank and cash
balances over net assets, was 64% (2014: 48%). Additional
financial resources were obtained from banks and a related
company to cope with the growth of the margin and IPO financing
business, resulting in a slight increase in the net gearing ratio
during the Year.
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The following table details the Cash and bank balances — general
account and bank loan of the Group at the end of the reporting
period denominated in original currencies:

TREIINBERRURBEEBHE2AEER
T RRITHEEE — —REFP RBITER

2015
—E-If
HKD CNY usD JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
BT AR¥ E A 3N T HE BN BT
(000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  ('000)  ('000)
(Fx) (Fr) (Fr) (Fx) (Fr) (Fr) (Fx) (Fr)
Cash and bank balances BeRIBITEER
— general account — —RERP 1,723,750 13,878 50 78 8 6 29,279
Bank loan RITER 4,364,500 - - - - - -
2014
—T-F
HKD CNY usb JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
BT ARE e A g B BT BPT
(000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (00O)  (00O)  (000)  ('000)
(Fr) (Fuo) (Fr) (Fov) (Fxn) (Fr) (Fro) (Fo)
Cash and bank balances BERBITRES
— general account ——REP 169,842 14,419 100 87 8 9 21,607
Bank loan RITER 1,324,000 = = = = = = =
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES FEENJAREE

Details of commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group as at
31 March 2015 are set out in note 44 to the financial statements in
this report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 March 2015, no material fluctuation was
noted on the Company’s overall share capital structure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2015, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$1,085,000 (2014: nil) in respect of acquisition of
plant and equipment.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK1.5 cents per share,
amounting to approximately HK$260,467,000).

AEER - T—AF=A=1+—HZAERHIA
BEFFER ARG BRERMT 44 -

R-ZF-AF=ZA=1+—R AEEBKERS
K&tz BEAANEH/51,085,00087T (ZF —
FoE) -

REIRE

BEERTEZMEEZE T —
FERTRBKRE(ZE—
4 H£49260,467,000787T) °

HE=R=+—Hit
PO : TR 1.58100
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and

vote at AGM

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
17 August 2015 (Monday)
18 August 2015 (Tuesday)

to 19 August 2015 (Wednesday)

Book close date

Record date 19 August 2015 (Wednesday)

AGM 19 August 2015 (Wednesday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before the above
latest time to lodge transfers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 32% of the Group’s total revenue
and the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer were
approximately 27% of the Group’s total revenue for the Year.

The aggregate purchases and service received during the year
ended 31 March 2015 attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and
service received.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2015 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company, which to
the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, have an interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group employed a total of approximately
849 (2014: 877) staff. The total staff cost for the year ended 31
March 2015 was approximately HK$212,983,000 (2014:
HK$190,209,000). The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary adjustment are assessed based on their work performance,
working and professional experiences and the prevailing market
condition.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had pledged clients’ securities at a
value of approximately HK$12,324,655,000 (2014:
HK$7,465,202,000) to secure certain banking facilities provided to
the Group.

In addition, the group’s term loans are secured by:

— the pledge of leasehold land and buildings held for own use
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$2,970,000,000
(2014 nily;

— shares of a subsidiary;
—  corporate guarantee from a subsidiary;
— acharge over operating bank accounts of two subsidiaries;

— assignment of income and receivables arising from
commercial operations of two subsidiaries.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

In the Previous Year, the Group acquired 15 subsurface mineral
permits through a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Canada
for cancellation of a loan receivable. Details are set in note 30 to
the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition
nor disposal conducted by the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
which govern our businesses. We have appointed compliance
officer to oversee compliance with all relevant regulations for our
financial services business in Hong Kong. As for the gaming
business in Macau, the Group has adopted anti-money laundering
procedures in accordance to relevant regulations. Policies are well
communicated to relevant employees to ensure compliance with
all these anti-money laundering policies and procedures.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
throughout the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board considers that effective environmental protection
measures will not only contribute to environmental protection but
also reduction of the production cost. During the Year, the Group
has implemented various measures to reduce waste and pollution
and to effectively and efficiently use the resources.

Financial Services Operation

The Group’s financial services operations are fully automated and
waste-free. Looking forward, we will continue to adopt the
environmental friendly operation mode.

Hotel and Gaming Operation

The Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of
its operation. Since our business operates in 24 hours basis,
electricity consumption has always been a main concern for us.
We are hence gradually replacing lighting system with energy
saving LED light in the two hotels, which is beginning to yield
positive results in reducing electricity usage. In additional to that,
the Group is actively considering the installation of new air
conditioning system to lower energy consumption and noise level.
The Group’s professional team also regularly checks and closely
monitors the waste water system to ensure the sewage discharged
is adequately treated and complied with relevant laws and
regulations.

Furthermore, heat recovery system is installed in Grandview Hotel;
the residual heat produced is collected by heat recovery
equipment and channeled to hotel guests’ water heating needs.
Grandview Hotel is awarded “2014 Macau Green Hotel Award —
Bronze Award” in recognition of its encouraging environmental
achievements.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The management firmly believes that staffs are the most valuable
asset of a company and are crucial to the company’s success. As
a caring employer, we offer competitive benefits to our staffs and
provide full spectrum training to familiarise our staffs with the
industry. We are also committed to provide our staffs a safe
working environment by strictly following operational manual
formulated with reference to the guidelines issued by the Macau
Labor Affairs Bureau.

The Group’s key hotel customers include online and traditional
travel agents. As a professional service provider, we are dedicated
to provide wonderful accommodating and entertainment
experience to our customers. Our well trained staffs create a safe,
clean and cozy environment to gain repeat customers.

We also established long-term good cooperation relationship with
suppliers up to over 10 years, to ensure stable supply, price and
quality of the product for our hotel operation in Macau.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risk and uncertainty facing the Group is the market
economy of China, Hong Kong and the surrounding regions as
significant changes in their economic conditions will have
significant impact on China and Hong Kong'’s stock market, as well
as Macau’s tourism.

Other risks include credit risks, market risks, interest rate risks and
liquidity risks. The Group has been adopting prudent risk
management policy to mitigate exposure to various risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

The Group’s Risk Management Committee has put in place credit
management policies and procedures which cover the examination
of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and
review of the margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the
Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in accordance with
the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management
Committee with toleration and exception reports reviewed by
Responsible Officers and senior management of the Group as well
as by the Risk Management Committee at regular meetings.

Market risk

If the market value of a margin client’s portfolio falls below his
margin loan amount and the margin client fails to meet margin
calls, the Group will be exposed to the risk that the margin loan
being delinquent. Similarly, if the value of the underlying products
of a client’s futures contract fluctuates such that the outstanding
balances in his account falls below the required maintenance
margin level, the Group may suffer loss if the client’s account
incurs loss even after liquidation of the open position. The
management of the Group keeps close monitoring of the market
condition so that immediate precautionary measures will be taken
to reduce such risk that the Group may encounter. Follow up
actions such as reducing the margin ratio for the pledged
securities and requiring clients to top up their position would be
taken if considered appropriate.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk arising from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and clients. The goal of liquidity
management is to enable the Group to adequately fund such
business commitments as well as to comply with relevant financial
resources rules applying to various licensed subsidiaries. To
address the risk, the Group’s Accounts Department and the senior
management will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has also put in place stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working capital is adequate
to meet its financial obligations.
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Interest rate risk

The Group charged interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of fund plus mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposit with banks are primarily at floating rates. Financial
liabilities such as bank loans are primarily at floating rates. The
Group income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s hotel revenues are mostly denominated in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”), and given the exchange rate of MOP has been
fairly stable, its exposure to exchange rate risk is considered to be
limited.

The Group’s financial service business and gaming revenue are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and hence no
significant exchange rate risk is identified.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group may invest its surplus funds or funds not designated for
specific purpose or funds designated for specific purpose but
application of which is not immediately required (collectively “the
Group’s Funds”) in the form of short term (i.e. less than one year)
and liquid stocks through investing the Group’s Funds in diversified
portfolio of investments products including listed or unlisted
securities, unit trust funds, or such other investments as the Board
of the Company, or such committees or person as the Board may
authorise, may decide from time to time so as to preserve the value
of the Group’s Funds and/or achieve capital appreciation.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
meets the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss any
areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company interim and annual reports. The Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no purchases,
sales or redemption of the Company'’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group had complied with all code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March
2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the
Company, all directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HEBEEIF

Details of events after the reporting period of the Group as at 31 R-ZE—F&F - F =+ —BAAEBERELEEE
March 2015 are set out in note 47 to the financial statements. 2B SRR 47 o

By Order of the Board AEEFH

Chu Yuet Wah T B

Chief Executive Officer FHE

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015 X —E—RAFAA=TH
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital
to the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group.
We commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the business of the Group.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance (the “Principles”) and two
levels of corporate governance practices:

(a) code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) which listed issuers
are expected to comply with or to give considered reasons
for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) for guidance only, which listed issuers are
encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions. It also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making. The Board
currently comprises 6 members, consisting of 3 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)*
Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors also represented at least one third of the members of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Lau Man Tak and Dr. Wong Yun Kuen have served the Board
for more than nine years. Both Mr. Lau and Dr. Wong do not have
any management role in the Company and its subsidiaries since
their appointment. They have expressed their willingness clearly to
exercise independent judgement and have been giving objective
views to the Company. There is no evidence that length of tenure
has an unfavourable influence on the independence of long-
serving non-executive directors. The Board is satisfied that, as
proven by the valuable independent judgement and advice given
by Mr. Lau and Dr. Wong over the years, Mr. Lau and Dr. Wong
have the required character, integrity, independence and
experience to perform the role of an Independent Non-executive
Director. The Board is not aware of any circumstances that might
influence Mr. Lau and Dr. Wong, in exercising their independent
judgement and therefore believes they are still independent.

* Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui.
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In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Lau and Dr.
Wong shall retire at the AGM and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

The term of office for each of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is the period up to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

All Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year which commenced on 1
April 2015, and subject to compliance with relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting (*“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

In August 2013, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee, the Board has approved and adopted the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in light of the
amendments of the CG Code, and the same are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board also
approved the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Training for Directors

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be
provided an induction so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors have provided records of the training they received to
the Company. The trainings included attending experts briefings,
seminars, and conferences, reading materials relevant to the
business, corporate governance and directors’ duties.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary. During the year, the Company has organised one
training session to all Directors conducted by qualified
professionals on “Connected Transactions” in March 2015.
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, Mr. Ho Chi Ho,
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen and Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan attended that
session.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance and performed the duties under the terms of reference
in code provision D.3.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 4 full Board meetings and 1
general meeting were held. The individual attendance record of
each Director at the Board meeting and general meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:
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Attendance Attendance

at Board at general

Name of Directors meetings meeting
H H

EEpE EEREE REASRE
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui KRB LA 4/4 1/1
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah TREL L 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ho Chi Ho fAIERELE 4/4 11
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =R 4/4 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Tak Bt 4/4 1/1
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACEAE 4/4 1/1
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Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meetings.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3
days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the
Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their
duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah respectively.
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Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. She is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the company practices and procedures, business
objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All the members of the three Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:
(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified

accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board.
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(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any)
applicable to the Directors and employees; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2015. During the year under review, work performed by the
Audit Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results
and the unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the
compliance and internal audit reports and the compliance and
corporate governance issues of the Group; and (iii) discussing with
external auditor the audit planning work (including the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations) in respect of the audit
of the annual results of the Group.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.

The Company’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2015
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the Audit
Committee meeting during the year ended 31 March 2015 is set
out below:

BE_ZTAF=-H=F—"BUHFE:  8E=RK
ERZBeeR CEALRLLEHIMT -

Attendance

at Audit

Committee

Name of Audit Committee Members meetings
H

EREES

EREEENERE =R P8
Mr. Lau Man Tak BIxfELE 5/5
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen mEREEL 5/5
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RACKE 5/5

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee has
assessed the performance of executive directors and reviewed the
terms of service contract of Directors.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included (i) assessing performance of
Executive Director and senior management and, where applicable,
approving their terms of services including the Directors’ fees and
the emoluments of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and
determining on policy and structure of the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2015 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under
review are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2015 and reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record is
as follows:
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Attendance at
Remuneration

Committee

Name of Remuneration Committee Members meetings
R

FMESS

FMESENE®E FRRY
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RELEE 11
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EEEEL 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Tak B fEkE 1/1
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The remuneration of the members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out as below:

Remuneration bands (HKS$)

BE_T-RHF=A=+—BIFE  ZHEMHA
RBlD z SREREKEFMESIANT

AR (GBT)

Nil to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 3,000,000
3,000,001 to 4,000,000
4,000,001 to 5,000,000
5,000,001 to 6,000,000
6,000,001 to 7,000,000
7,000,001 to 8,000,000
8,000,001 to 9,000,000

Number of

person

A

Z£ £ 1,000,000 8
1,000,001 £ 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 2 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 £ 4,000,000 0
4,000,001 £ 5,000,000 0
5,000,001 £ 6,000,000 0
6,000,001 £ 7,000,000 0
7,000,001 2 8,000,000 0
8,000,001 2 9,000,000 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy for the consideration of the Board and to
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy. During the
nomination process, the nomination committee will consider the
competency, independency (in case of independent non-executive
director), conflict of interests, capacity, management experience of
a candidate which makes him/herself suitable for the role as a
director and make recommendation to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s structure, size
and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board exist,
the Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and (iii) adopting of a policy concerning diversity
of board members in accordance with the new Code Provision
A.5.6 in the revised CG Code which came into effect on 1
September 2013. Nomination procedures and the process and
criteria will be determined by the Nomination Committee should
there be the need to select and recommend candidates for
directorship.

Details of the duties and powers of the Nomination Committee are
set out in its written terms of reference which has been revised
during the year under review in line with the amendment of the CG
Code on board diversity and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2015. The attendance record is as follows:

REBEFEA REZEBETZIERENZ
MEZREE - ABRAK (BIEREE - AFEKk
KR)ETESRABE () BB LIFENTE
ERRZEFEBIMRERE  URTEEEZE
M RNBERZZE—=FNLA —BERZE
1EET 1 E & 45 <F Rl T AIME ST AL5.6 554 Wﬁ%ﬁ%
ERKNEZTTIEZER - MBHEEWENEZE
EANE REZEEHHIERS i%ﬂﬁir@%&ﬁ
Al o

REZEGZRBGLRENFBEENEESEBESR
AABRSEC R OEFEEITANELEE
FRTUNBHAEFTRREZ T ZER -  XAR
ARR MR PRI E o

BE_ZT-RAF=-A=1+T—"BLLFE REZE
SRR R HESHRICHEHEIMT

Attendance at

Nomination

Committee

Name of Nomination Committee Members meetings
H

REEES®

REZSENEHSE =R 8
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EEEE L 1/1
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RACKE 11
Mr. Lau Man Tak B fEkE 1/1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.
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The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by the employees who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2015.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 57 to 58.

The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$1,995,000 and
HK$680,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company is set out below:

AT RE ST REAA RN 82 EE AL
AEEXS  TUBRBRENENEETAC B
miE3l ([ &mEsl)) -

ARAYEEREEERE@ESI BN

BRMBHBRR2EERZEANE

EERAENFERTHES AR BE QMR
HiRE EMRRREMEERE 2 EMIKER
E o FRSE - JEW R B 2 RS o

EEHARSFAREREARRABE_T—0F
ZA=ZT-BULEFEZRBEE -

KRR INEAZ EREM LT B TS SRR FR R 3
BNEE7 258 H 2 B AZHMHRE

28R

o

HE-_Z-—RAF=A=1t—HBIEE  HH%E
ZRFEZRIEEN BN AR RINEZEET 2
B4 9 Bl & 1,995,000 7% 7T & 680,000 7 7T ©

BN/ BAARRTINEREBEME 2 ST

Amount of

Types of Services Fees Payable/Paid

RIS EE R BN, BANERASE

(HK$)

(&)

Audit Services EiZ RS 1,995,000
Non-audit Services IEEZ AR

1. Tax services 1. BIERYS 82,000

2. Others 2. Efh 598,000

680,000

Total S 2,675,000
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Management currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and an independent accounting firm, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is satisfied that the internal control systems within
the Group are effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chun Lam was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company on 4 April 2014. During the year, Mr. Chan Chun Lam
has undertaken sufficient hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a
special general meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings,
any Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
of the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Bermuda
Companies Act.
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Proceedings at general meetings

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kingston.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.
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The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 59 to 60. The Board does not
recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2015 (2014: HK1.5 cents). No interim dividend was
declared during the six months ended 30 September 2014 (six
months ended 30 September 2013: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis of
the annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2015 is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 64 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
March 2015 are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31

March 2015 amounted to approximately HK$1,153,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as
below:

BB A A
AATEBHBARFERNHBREN 21 -

EEHBEHRE
AEEBERAMREE Y LB REERE &
HE DEBECERRERE  UOEEEE
FHE BT

2015 2014 2013 2012 2010

—B-5f —mF ZF-=f Z%-ZF ZTTF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FTAT FTAT TAT TAT

Turnover EEH 2,479,274 1,847,685 1,377,988 1,573,971 541,247
Profit before taxation B AR AT A 1,478,597 900,955 614,242 639,903 100,904
Profit attributable to owners A ANEGRT 1,259,636 771,060 537,884 548,988 99,558
Total assets BERE 32,747,741 25873931 21,651,262 19,518,211 3,875,279
Total liabilities BiREE (15,194,234)  (9,984,042)  (6,824,247)  (5,374,857) (55,526)
Non-controlling interest 3H R 2 (19,299) (8,098) (13,438) (11,289) (3,886)
Shareholders’ fund BREES 17,534,208 15,881,791 14,813,577 14,132,065 3,815,867
Note: 2012 figures represent period for fifteen months ended 31 March it - —E——F 7 FHEHEZT T ——F=H=1—

2012.

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share options and share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in notes 37 and 39 to the
financial statements respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004 expired on 6
June 2014. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
20 August 2013, shareholders of the Company have approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to participants. To determine the eligibility of the participant, the
Board may offer to grant an option to any participant who has
contribution to the Group.
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Options granted under the Share Option Scheme are subject to
such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion and specified in the offer of an option, which
terms and conditions may include: (A) vesting conditions which
must be satisfied before an option-holder’s option shall become
vested and capable of being exercised; and (B) the Board may, in
its absolute discretion, specify performance conditions that must
be achieved before an option can be exercised and/or the
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

The option price will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and notified to an option-holder. The minimum option
price shall not be less than the highest of: (A) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; (B) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (C)
the nominal value of the shares.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
options to be granted under any other scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue as
at the adoption date. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.

With the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting, the
Board may “refresh” the 10% limit provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme
under the limit as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the
“refreshed” limit. Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and option granted under any other schemes
(including those outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant scheme, or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
“refreshed”.
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The Board may, with the approval of the Shareholders, grant
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular to the
Shareholders containing a generic description of the specified
participants who may be granted such options, the number and
terms of such options to be granted and the purpose of granting
such options to the specified participants with an explanation of
how the terms of the options will serve the purpose. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under any other scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and no options may be granted
under any other schemes if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

The Board shall not grant any options to any participant which, if
exercised, would result in such participant becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated with
the total number of shares already issued or to be issued to him
under all options granted to him (including those options exercised
or outstanding) in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at such date.

The Board may grant options to any participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period with the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting (with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting). In such situation, the Company
will send a circular to the Shareholders and the circular must
disclose the identity of the participant, the number and terms of the
options to be granted (and previously granted to such participant).

An option under the Share Option Scheme which is vested and
has not lapsed may be exercised at any time during such period
notified by the Board as not exceeding 10 years from the offer
date. The exercise of options may also be subject to any conditions
imposed by the Board at the time of offer.

For the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company had no

share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on prorate basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2015 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1), Mr. Lau Man Tak and Dr.
Wong Yun Kuen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, Mr.
Lau Man Tak and Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company still considers the independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, aged 62, holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Accounting and a Master of Business Administration from the
Louisiana State University. He has extensive experience in
commercial property leasing and management and corporate
finance, foreign exchange, lending, securities and futures trading
industries. He is a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute and a
responsible officer under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for
type 1 (dealing in securities) and 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
activities. He is also the spouse of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and he
joined the Group in February 2006.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is the co-founder of
Kingston group of companies, she has over 20 years of experience
in financial services industry. Mrs. Chu has also been appointed as
the Chairman of The Institute of Securities Dealers and Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association.
Moreover, she is the Member of National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Permanent Member of
the Friends of Hong Kong Association, Founder and Honorary
Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies,
Chairman of Po Leung Kuk, Standing Chairman of Federation of
Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, Chairman of
the Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan Associations, Chairman of
Aplichau Promotion of Tourism Association, Chairman of The
Aplichau KaiFong Welfare Association, Honorary President of
Hong Kong Army Cades Association, Honorary President of Hong
Kong New Arrivals Services Foundation Limited, Honorary Vice
President of Hong Kong Girl Guides Association and Director of
Sun Yat-Sen University Advisory Board. She received an Honorary
Doctorate of Philosophy in Business Management degree from
York University, the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Science in
Management degree from Golden Gate University, the U.S.A.. Mrs.
Chu is currently the chairman and executive director of Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited which is a company listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange. She is also the spouse of Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and she joined the Group in April 2005.
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Executive Director

Mr. Ho Chi Ho, aged 40, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ho is responsible for origination and execution of corporate
finance transactions including mergers and acquisitions, corporate
and capital restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity
and debt fund raising. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in banking
and capital markets, and also held senior position in corporate
management in a Hong Kong listed company. Mr. Ho holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a bachelor degree in
accounting and finance from The University of Hong Kong. He is
registered as a Responsible Officer under Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Ho had worked with the
Group from 2003 to 2007 and rejoined in August 2011. He was
appointed as Executive Director on 2 January 2014.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, aged 57, received a Ph.D. Degree from
Harvard University, and was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. He has worked
in financial industries in the United States and Hong Kong for many
years, and has considerable experience in corporate finance,
investment and derivative products. He is a member of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Dr. Wong is an Adjunct
Professor of Syracuse University, USA, the chairman and an
executive director of UBA Investments Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of Bauhaus International
(Holdings) Limited, Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited, China
Sandi Holdings Limited, Guocang Group Limited, Kaisun Energy
Group Limited, GT Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group Company Limited) and Far East
Holdings International Limited. Dr. Wong was also an independent
non-executive director of Harmony Asset Limited from September
2004 to January 2015, Kong Sun Holdings Limited from April 2007
to November 2014, Huajun Holdings Limited (formerly known as
New Island Development Holdings Limited) from October 2010 to
September 2014, KuangChi Science Limited (formerly known as
Climax International Company Limited) from June 2007 to August
2014 and Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited from November 2009 to September 2012. All the
companies mentioned above are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
joined the Group in June 2005.
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Mr. Lau Man Tak, aged 45, holds a Bachelor Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
more than 17 years of experience in corporate finance, accounting
and auditing. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited, KuangChi Science Limited (formerly known as Climax
International Company Limited) which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also an executive
director, the chairman, authorised representative and compliance
officer of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited from June 2012 to
September 2014, which is a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, an independent non-
executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited from September
2008 to April 2014, AMCO United Holdings Limited from October
2010 to June 2015 and an executive director and chief financial
officer of China Sandi Holdings Limited from April 2010 to
September 2012, which are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in October 2005.

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan, aged 64, has extensive experience in real
estate and financial services industries. Mr. Yu has a Bachelor
Degree in Management from Youngstown State University in Ohio,
USA and a Master of Science Degree in Financial Services from
American College in Pennsyvania, USA. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was the
first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San Francisco
Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union Real Estate
Company in the United States from 1980-1995 and held senior
positions in MetLife and New York Life Insurance Company in
managing Asian customers in North America. Mr. Yu is an
executive director of Far East Holdings International Limited, and
an independent non-executive director of Noble Century
Investment Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sam Woo
Holdings Limited) and China Sandi Holdings Limited. He was an
executive director and Chairman of Kong Sun Holdings Limited.
He joined the Group in September 2008.
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Senior Management

Mr. Chan Chun Lam, aged 43, joined the Group on 4 April 2014
and is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
and a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has worked for an International accounting
firm and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years of professional experience in financial
management and auditing.

Ms. Chan Yin Tong Cynthia, aged 64, is a director of Kingston
Securities Limited. Ms. Chan is responsible for promotion, sales
and marketing, recruitment and training of sales representative of
Kingston Securities. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
securities broking, compliance, administrative functions, activities
in underwriting new issues, equity capital markets and project
financing. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Dealing Director
and Responsible Officer of Wintech Securities Limited and Koffman
Securities Limited principally responsible for securities broking,
compliance and administrative functions. In addition, Ms. Chan
also undertook activities in underwriting new issues, equity capital
markets and project financing. Ms. Chan has been working in
international securities firms and investment banks in the 1980’s.
Ms. Chan worked in Merrill Lynch (FE) Limited in 1989 and
Standard Chartered Securities Limited in 1993 and was also the
Assistant Vice President of Prudential Bache Securities Hong Kong
Limited in 1997. She is very experienced with the operations of the
Hong Kong securities market. Ms. Chan is a registered
Responsible Officer under Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Ms. Chan joined the Group in February 2006.

Mr. Wong Hip Keung Jimmy, aged 55, is the Director-Retail and
Corporate Sales of Kingston Securities Limited. Mr Wong is
responsible for overseeing the dealing department which includes
both securities and futures products. He has a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the Golden Gate University in San Francisco, CA,
USA. With extensive experience in securities and capital markets,
he is specialised in securities & futures broking, compliance and
administrative functions. He is registered as a responsible officer
under Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities. He joined the Group in October
1996.
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Mr. Lou Ming, aged 43, is the managing director of Kingston
Corporate Finance Limited responsible for supervising and
executing corporate finance projects, such as private placements,
secondary market placements, merger & acquisitions, reverse
takeovers and financial advisory on corporate reorganisation. Mr.
Lou has more than 20 years of experience in banking and
corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lou has worked
with several corporate finance houses in Hong Kong to provide
advisory services to enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC,
including IPOs on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange, takeovers, disposals and acquisitions of assets, debt
and corporate restructuring, privatisation and spin-off of listed
companies. He is registered as a Responsible Officer under Type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Lou
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Chan Chi Hung Derek, aged 44, is the managing director of
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited. He is principally engaged in
leading and planning investment banking and financial
consultation services, including IPO sponsorship, structured
finance, merger & acquisitions, asset restructuring and corporate
governance advisory. He has earned over 18 years of experience
from a few renowned securities firms and global financial
institutions. He Holds a Master of Business Administration in the
UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration in Canada.
He is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance for Type 1 & 6 activities.

Mr. Keung Kelvin, aged 41, is the director of Kingston Asset
Management. Mr. Keung is responsible for supervising the
operation of the Group’s asset management department and
making investment decisions on behalf of clients. Mr. Keung
graduated from the Macquarie University, Australia, with a
Bachelor Degree of Commerce. Mr. Keung possesses extensive
experience in the financial industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Keung was the director and Responsible Officer of the asset
management department of Emperor Capital Limited. Mr. Keung
was the dealing director of Fortune (HK) Securities Limited
(formerly known as Hong Tong Hai Securities Limited) and was
licensed as a Responsible Officer to carry on Type 9 (asset
management) and Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Mr. Keung is licensed as a Responsible Officer of
Kingston Asset Management under Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activity. Mr. Keung joined the Group in December 2006.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years which commenced on 1 April
2014, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than 6 months’ written notice.

All Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year which commenced on 1
April 2015, and subject to compliance with relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2015 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2015.

OTHER MATTERS

Details of events after the reporting date are set out in note 47 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

At 31 March 2015, the following Directors had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required (a) to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFQO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies:

%%&E%&?TE&AEE@%%Z%E&

K

)

R-FB—RF=H=1T—H SE=ERETRAK
HiRuAE (E& R B LB IRGIFH XV ER) 2 i
fn - HEAROIEST @ BB () REEF IS
EBIEXVEBE 7 R E 8D B/AME AR B HER
Fre EfAgm AR (BREREESZ RBEGREI2
X WEFLESER BRIOXR)  H(0)R
1% 3% 5 R BB 1R I 55 352 R 7R 7d A FZ 16 X P st &
Aft 2 EfA SRR KC)REBELTRRES
ETELFRRZHNRETRREANME AR A K H
R AL AREREIORRIAT

Long positions in the Shares: DA
Number of shares

of the Company No. of

AATRBEE underlying Approximate

Personal Corporate  shares of the percentage of

Name of Directors Interests Interests Company Total shareholding

PAUNGIEiEL B

EEnE PN NEIER R B By REBFDL

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah - 7,107,603,895 5,250,000,000 12,357,603,895 102.01%
FHELZL (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htat 1) (Htat2)

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui - 7,107,603,895 5,250,000,000 12,357,603,895 102.01%
KRB EAE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htat 1) (Btet2)
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Notes:

(1)  As at 31 March 2015, of the 7,107,603,895 shares, 1,894,699,896
shares are held by Sure Expert Limited, 15,939,999 shares are held
by Kingston Capital Limited and 5,196,964,000 shares are held by
Active Dynamic Limited, all of which are controlled by Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah (“Mrs. Chu”). Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (“Mr. Chu”), the spouse
of Mrs. Chu, is deemed to be interested in these 7,107,603,895
shares.

(2) As at 31 March 2015, Mrs. Chu, through Active Dynamic Limited
held 5,250,000,000 convertible preference shares conferring rights
to subscribe for up to HK$4,200,000,000 in aggregate in cash for
5,250,000,000 new shares at the conversion price of HK$0.80
(subject to adjustments) per share. Mr. Chu is deemed to be
interested in the 5,250,000,000 underlying shares held by Mrs. Chu.

Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO
by any Director of the Chief Executive of the Company or their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in securities”, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2015 was the Company or any of its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors
or Chief Executives, nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

(1) R=F—A"AF=A=1+—H R7107,6038958
& 17 & - 1,894,699,896 % fi% 17 HiSure Expert
Limited#% 7 ~ 15,939,999/8 B 17 i & FIl L Bt £ H
R 2 & ## & K 5,196,964,0004% % 17 H Active
Dynamic Limited#5& + iZ %~ 6] 25515 F A #E

K ([FLL)) S o FL4 2 BBERXBEE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company:

Number of shares

EFERR
R-Z—RAF=A=+—0 BADARBES
R E GRS HATEE 2 EERRETH
R TIREEAGARA - RRERAAR
BRIRAR A HERRAR |

of the Company No. of
AATRRBEE underlying Approximate
Personal Corporate  shares of the percentage of
Name of Shareholders Interests Interests Company Total shareholding
RN FEE B4
BRREMHE A BARERE DNEERE ROEE By REBDL
Sure Expert Limited - 1,894,699,896 - 1,894,699,896 15.64%
(Note 1)(FizE 1)
Active Dynamic Limited - 5,196,964,000 5,250,000,000 10,446,964,000 86.24%
(Note 2) (K1t 2)
Better Sino Limited (Note 3) - 1,125,000,000 - 1,125,000,000 9.29%
EEARRAE (K 3)
Mr. Lee Wai Man (Note 3) 18,852,000  1,530,750,000 - 1,549,602,000 12.79%
FEXSELE (HE3) (Note 4)
(Hfiz4)
Notes: Kzt -

(1) Sure Expert Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs. Chu.
The interests of Mrs. Chu and Sure Expert Limited in the Company
are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

(2)  Active Dynamic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs.
Chu. The interests of Mrs. Chu and Active Dynamic Limited in the
Company are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

(8)  Better Sino Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lee Wai
Man (“Mr. Lee”), the father of Mrs. Chu.

(4) As at 31 March 2015, of the 1,530,750,000 shares, 405,750,000
shares are held by Choose Right Limited. 1,125,000,000 shares are
held by Better Sino Limited. Both companies are wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lee.

Save for those disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2015.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 36 to the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions —
Provision of Financial Services

On 13 August 2013, Sincere Watch and Kingston entered
into the Master Agreement which provides the framework
within which the SW Group may engage the Kingston Group
to provide Services to the SW Group from time to time for a
fixed term commencing on the date of the Master Agreement
up to 31 March 2016.

Mrs. Chu is a controlling shareholder and executive director
of both Sincere Watch and Kingston. Therefore, Sincere
Watch and Kingston are regarded as connected person to
each other under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement,
which were entered into between Sincere Watch and
Kingston constitute continuing connected transactions on the
part of each of Sincere Watch and Kingston under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Master Agreement

Master Agreement
Date: 13 August 2013
Parties: (i)  Sincere Watch
(i)  Kingston
Duration: commencing from the date of the Master

Agreement up to 31 March 2016 (both

days inclusive).
Subject matter:  provision of financial services by the
Kingston Group to the SW Group,
including but not limited to, placement,
underwriting or sub-underwriting of
securities, brokerage, financial advisory
services, asset management, general
consultancy and other ancillary services.

S EREMARAY )

3y SRR
AR LR R R 812 SE 8B B R AR 36 ©
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Annual Caps:

the parties agree that the Services will be
subject to the following annual caps:

the aggregate amounts payable by the
SW Group to the Kingston Group for the
transactions for the period from the date
of the Master Agreement up to 31 March
2014 and for each of the two financial
years ending 31 March 2015 and 31

FELER : FINENTRERBZRRIAT
FEER :
REwmZEMEEE TN

FERE = EiLl:/HﬂF'aEJLA&%Z
ET-—HF=A=t+—HK
—E-RF=A=1+—HItM™m
EMBFEERF  SWEEHRR
FRNENEEE 2 AR

March 2016 shall not exceed the TMSHBBELATEE :
following:
For the period
from the date of
the Master For the year For the year
Agreement up to ending ending
31 March 2014 31 March 2015 31 March 2016
EENE =R S BE
EF-2-M4F —Z-1% — A
=A=t+—H =H=+-—H =A=t—-H
(HHAR +HEE +EE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Services (including placement,  IR#% (BIEERE - B8
underwriting or DEERER KL
subunderwriting of securities, B RS B R AR AS
brokerage, financial advisory EEEE  —RHERK
services, asset management, H i fARARRTS)
general consultancy and
other ancillary services) 18,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Terms: on normal commercial terms and at rates & H—REERREIL - Bl

no less favorable from Independent Third
Parties in respect of the Services that are
similar in terms of scale, complexity and
nature to the relevant Services to be
provided by the Kingston Group to the SW
Group. Detailed payment terms will be
specified in individual contracts governing
particular transactions.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated

13 August 2013.
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DEFINITIONS Bx

“Kingston” Kingston Financial Group Limited [ 52 B SN2cpsEERAR

“Kingston Group” Kingston and its subsidiaries [ENEEE & SNERENBAFE

“Sincere Watch”  Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited [Sincere f§  Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Watch | Limited

“SW Group” Sincere Watch and its subsidiaries [SWE&E] 48  Sincere Watch R EKIE A F]

“Services” provision of financial services by the Kingston

Group to the SW Group, including but not limit
to placement, underwriting or sub-underwriting
of securities, brokerage, financial advisory
services, asset management, general
consultancy and other ancillary services

“Master the agreement dated 13 August 2013 entered
Agreement”

into between Sincere Watch and Kingston in
relation to the provision of Services for the SW
Group by the Kingston Group

Renewal of Continuing Connected Transactions
The terms of the brokerage services agreement entered
between Kingston Securities Limited, Kingston Futures
Limited and the Chu & Li's Family dated 21 February 2011
regarding the provision of brokerage services and each of
the financial services agreements entered between Kingston
Securities Limited and the Previous Relevant Director(s)
dated 21 February 2011 regarding the provision of financial
services expired on 31 March 2014. In order for the Group to
continue to provide brokerage and financial services to the
relevant Directors and their respective associates (where
applicable), on 3 January 2014, (i) Kingston Securities
Limited and Kingston Futures Limited have entered into the
2014 Brokerage Services Agreement with the Chu & Li's
Family for provision of brokerage services and (ii) Kingston
Securities Limited has entered into the 2014 Chu & Li’s
Family Financial Services Agreement with the Chu & Li's
Family and the 2014 Financial Services Agreement with Mr.
Ho Chi Ho for provision of financial services for a term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
3 January 2014 and circular dated 28 February 2014.
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3. Details of the connected transactions entered into by the
Company during the year are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 of the
Company have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
]

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 EETEEHR1115
5K : +852 2815 2239 k2254

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 59 to 176, which comprise
the consolidated and company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

HENESRERERAF

(REFZEEIMALZBRAA)
IR AR

AZHMEEZEFLeRERERAR(EA
A REWBAR (5iHE[EKE])HNRE9E 176
BRiaMBHk  ERRER_E—HFE=H
T+ —HZEEARRARPBEMRREK  UEEEZ
Emiﬁzi*ﬂéﬁ)&ﬁﬁﬂ%@%%¥i% e
HEPRMGERSREREFZSFTERME
MEMFHEER -

EERER

BERREFARERBEETEGHMARRM2E
BB REERELE QAR 2 WERTE - fﬁ

EMB/R2EME

HEBRRNFZHEENBHRER  LNEEEER
W2 NEBEEH LAE&%ZW\HMH&%TTEEE

RARFE SR ER M G B EASHREAL -

BB A2 B

AZ@E e EERRBRMZESL  REZFRE
MBEHRERBR - URBBERZEQBEEI0KF
MEEMBRR (ERER)RE - BRItz AR
ETAAEREMAE - ARBENH AR A RER
BRAEMEMA TR TSR ETMAEE -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE—_ZT—AF=A=1+—HLFE

i S HAD 42 T 4R i R

2015 2014
- —EF-mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt et FET FH&T
Revenue WS 7 2,479,274 1,847,685
Other income EH AU A 8 25,721 71,980
2,504,995 1,919,665
Inventory consumed FiERGEE (23,105) (22,175)
Staff costs BITRA 9 (212,983) (190,209)
Gaming commission BYAE (151,032) (163,685)
Broker commission S Be (98,784) (37,767)
Interest expenses for securities brokerage BELLERREBSREED
and margin financing operations ZH B (123,445) (69,957)
Depreciation wE (132,495) (121,049)
Impairment loss on advances to customers MEFATRESHTHENAR
in margin financing, trade and other B 5 RAEMERERK 2
receivables BB EE - (5,302)
Administrative expenses THAX (93,128) (106,592)
Other operating expenses HEgEMAY (159,059) (164,675)
(994,031) (881,411)
Finance income BMEMA 7,506 4,932
Finance cost %ﬂiﬁﬁﬂi 10 (20,200) (58,800)
Gain/(loss) from sales of trading securities HEZGEE 2 (EER) 317 (675)
Fair value loss on trading securities R 57 5%"2 NFEEE (7,639) (2,425)
Exchange gain/(loss) ERHQ =/ (E518) 1,804 (4,328)
Share of results of joint ventures DhEELEEE 22 (23) (1,262)
Amortisation e (14,132) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets held BIELEEFEEREBERE
for sale 30 - (74,741)
(32,367) (137,299)
Profit before taxation M 55 BT ) 12 1,478,597 900,955
Taxation Ia 11 (207,760) (125,235)
Profit for the year FRRF 1,270,837 775,720
SR EMERMARAT | R RAAEER 59
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE—_ZT—RAF=A=1+—HLFE

2015 2014
—Z-h%F —ZE—mE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hitat FET FH&T
Profit for the year F s F| 1,270,837 775,720
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 EIA 16
ltem that will not be reclassified to BrEEMHE 2R
profit or loss: HA :
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land HELHWEEFZ
and buildings EHA 653,477 484,720
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently HiEnpeEHs»E =
to profit or loss: BBl
Unrealised loss arising from change in AHEEREATEE
fair value of available-for-sale investments EEZARERER (229) (517)
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBES
translation of foreign operations PE 5 =5 - (23,404)
Other comprehensive gain for the year, FREHMEEWE - HRTIE
net of tax 653,248 460,799
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEWAEEE 1,924,085 1,236,519
Profit for the year attributable to: iR FEREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ SN 1,259,636 771,060
Non-controlling interests JEVERS HE 25 11,201 4,660
1,270,837 775,720
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE{L 2 T U A48 %F :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ Z =N 1,912,884 1,231,859
Non-controlling interests FEE R 11,201 4,660
1,924,085 1,236,519
Earnings per share (cents per share) BREFR (") 15
— Basic — HK 7.25 4.44
— Diluted — s 7.25 4.44
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As at 31 March 2015
RZBE—RF=A=+—H

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-8F —ZT—UF
=HI=EE=E =B =9—E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MtaE TExT FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KRR 19 3,926,992 3,303,334
Deferred tax assets EERIAE & 38 6,107 6,107
Statutory deposit for financial TRURBER 2 ETIRE
services business 8,272 7,484
Goodwill EES 20 10,996,683 10,996,683
Intangible assets mILEE 30 308,553 =
Interests in joint ventures TN N 22 1 24
15,246,608 14,313,632
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 23 3,265 2,996
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 24 930 1,387
Trading securities RSG5 25 38,644 48,692
Advances to customers in margin RBRFAMREBFLRE
financing 26 13,314,293 9,133,772
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R E A EUER K 27 1,129,254 188,513
Tax recoverable AT Bl F5 T8 35,331 =
Cash and bank balances He MIR1TE R
— held on behalf of customers —REFHEA 28 1,207,184 1,651,393
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRITHEA
— general accounts — —RRERF 29 1,772,232 210,861
17,501,133 11,237,614
Intangible assets held for sale RIEHERTEE 30 - 322,685
17,501,133 11,560,299
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B5 REMENER 31 1,831,643 1,863,074
Amounts due to shareholders FET IR R 0 TE 32 2,420,911 2,847,111
Loan from a related company KE—KEEARER 33 5,437,965 2,952,639
Subordinated loans ‘EEXR 34 700,000 700,000
Bank loans RITEK &5 2,954,500 1,324,000
Tax payable FERTFRIR 135,678 76,712
13,480,697 9,763,536
Net current assets RBEEFE 4,020,436 1,796,763
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERS 19,267,044 16,110,395
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As at 31 March 2015
RZZBE—RF=A=+—H

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
=A=+-8B =A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEMF
Bank loans RITER 35 1,410,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAEE 38 303,537 220,506
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHATE 1,713,537 220,506
Total liabilities EE8E 15,194,234 9,984,042
Net assets BEERE 17,553,507 15,889,889
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital — ordinary shares A — B 39 242,290 242 290
Share capital — non-redeemable f&7AR — e fE
convertible preference shares A # A% AE S AR 39 105,000 105,000
Reserves fHiE 40 17,186,918 15,534,501
Total equity attributable to owners AAREEAEILERERE
of the Company 17,534,208 15,881,791
Non-controlling interests FEERERS 19,299 8,098
Total equity ERBE 17,553,507 15,889,889

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
KR
Director

EE

RERESER

Chu Yuet Wah
ZHE

Director

EF
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As at 31 March 2015
RZBE—RF=A=+—H

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—®-1f —F-PNF
== —
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt et FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MRE 19 1,894 3,368
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR ZIEE 21 14,067,162 14,339,424
14,069,056 14,342,792
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayment e RIERRIE 27 10,087 7,810
Amount due from a subsidiary FEI—ZK B A TR IE 21 399,173 399,168
Cash and bank balances B & MIRITE
— general accounts — —MmRERF 29 811,186 35,914
1,220,446 442 892
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payable and accruals HAb BT BRI R ST E 31 2,164 2,562
Amounts due to shareholders FE SRR B FR 1B 32 2,130,911 2,410,000
Bank loans RITER 35 48,000 =
Tax payable FERSBETR 1,904 =
2,182,979 2,412,562
Net current liabilities REaETEE (962,533) (1,969,670)
Total asset less current liabilities EEAERABAERE 13,106,523 12,373,122
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank loans IRITE R 35 752,000 =
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEE 752,000 =
Total liabilities EERE 2,934,979 2,412,562
Net assets EEZFE 12,354,523 12,373,122
Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital — ordinary shares IR — Eima 39 242,290 242 290
Share capital — non-redeemable IR — A FEE
convertible preference shares Al PR E A K 39 105,000 105,000
Reserves HE 40 12,007,233 12,025,832
Total equity EEEE 12,354,523 12,373,122
On behalf of the Board REEER

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Director

EF

Chu Yuet Wah
=HE

Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Ao e S B R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-ZT—AF=A=1t—HItFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RNt PN, i 5

Share

capital —

non-
Share  redeemable
capital —  convertible Share Capital Property  Investment  Exchange Non-
ordinary  preference premium  redemption  Contributed  revaluation  revaluation  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
shares shares account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity

& —

FIEE
BA— R R  E4RED n¥E  REER  EXRE

EBR L #ER B ARBR  EfER i e RERA &t FEREE  BnAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TEL TEn TEn TEL THL THL TEL TR TEL TR TR TR

At1 April 2013 W-E-=%§MmA-A 242,290 105000 11,739,980 466 814 1,163,582 2,688 235 1558622 14813577 13438 14,827,015
Profit for the year FRET - = = = = = = - 771,060 771,060 4,660 775,720
Other comprehensive income ~ £AEMZERA

for the year - - - - - 484,720 (517) (23,404) - 460,799 - 460,799

Total comprehensive income 2 ERALE

for the year - - - - - 484,720 (617) (23,404) 771,060 1,231,859 4,660 1,236,519
Realised upon depreciation Bt REFERLE

based on revalued amount RAERER

of land and building - - - - - (31,256) - - 31,256 - - -
Payment of dividends EITARE = = - = = = - - (173,645) (173,645) - (173,645)
Payment of dividend to MFEREREARE

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000 (10,000) -
At 31 March 2014 RZZ2-BE

=fA=1-A 242,290 105000 11,739,980 466 814 1617046 2,071 (23169) 2,197,293 15,881,791 8098 15,889,889

At 1 April 2014 W-8-REMA-A 242,290 105000 11,739,980 466 814 1,617,046 2,07 (23,169) 2,197,293 15,881,791 8,098  15889,889
Profitfor the year EREF - - - - - - - - 125063 1,250,636 1,201 1,270,837
Other comprehensive income  EREHZERA

for the year - - - - - 653,477 (229) - - 653,248 - 653,248

Total comprehensive income  FRZARAEE

for the year - - - - - 653,477 (229) - 1,259,636 1,912,884 11,201 1,924,085
Realised upon depreciaton K REFERSE

based onrevalued amount  RITEREE

of land and building - - - - - (44,587) - - 44,587 - - -
Payment of dividends EHRE - - - - - - - - (60467) (260467 - (260,467)

At 31 March 2015 R-B-1%
=A=t-H 242,290 105,000 11,739,980 466 814 2,2259% 1,842 (23,169) 3,241,049 17,534,208 19209 17,553,507
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 /N Nl =1
EEHESRER
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z—AF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
= —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBABRAERE
Profit before taxation BR B A8 A 1,478,597 900,955
Adjustments for: BTYSIEMEL T
Share of loss of joint ventures DA EDEEE 23 1,262
Finance cost BB A 20,200 58,800
Finance income A YA (7,506) (4,932)
Dividend income Rz B A (1,628) (2,299)
(Gain)/loss from sales of trading securities LERFGESF 2 (W), B (317) 675
Amortisation A 14,132 =
Depreciation e 132,495 121,049
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE  BEKEEZ
plant and equipment &8, () 69 (810)
Impairment losses on advances to customers MEFEANREEHE
in margin financing, trade and ARE S REAMERIRF 2
other receivables BEETIE - 5,302
Reversal of impairment losses on advances BOmEP A M RESRE
to customers in margin financing, UERBSREMBEWMIRERZ
trade and other receivables BIERE - (16,085)
Bad debts recovery I qEp=i - (14,807)
Unrealised exchange loss BIG0E W E1E - 7,719
Unrealised losses on trading securities REHEHZ REEEE 7,639 2,425
Impairment loss on intangible assets FIEHERETEERERRE
held for sale - 74,741
Gain on lapse of derivative financial liabilities PTEEmaERERC K - (21,722)
Operating profit before working capital changes & iE& & E &A1 2 &£ 2% F 1,643,704 1,112,773
Proceeds from sale of trading securities KEHERSEFSRIE 2,726 1,006
Increase in inventories FEEM (269) (54)
Increase in trading securities R HBHILN - (2,677)
Increase in statutory deposit for SRE 2 EE RS IE N
financial business (788) (3,032)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N Ho A FE AR RS AN (5,121,262) (2,887,980)
Decrease/(increase) in cash and bank ReERRTEH — REFPHEA
balances — held on behalf of customers S (1) 444,209 (920,087)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 REMEERR
other payables Omd),/ 2 (31,431) 990,992
Cash used in operations KEEETARS (3,063,111) (1,709,059)
Income taxes paid BRFTEE (184,125) (78,896)
Net cash used in operating activities R EISFTRIR & )55 (3,247,236) (1,787,955)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_ZT-—HF=A=1t—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHREBHRERE
Investment in joint ventures REEDEZIRE - ®)
Payment for the purchase of property, TNBEEME BMELIHEER
plant and equipment (20,284) (28,986)
Proceed from sale of available-for-sale KEHERHHEREMERIEA
investment 228 2,991
Proceeds from disposal of property, REHEWZE - BE K& E
plant and equipment FriSskIE 570 310
Interest received B U B 7,506 4,932
Dividend received BHARE 1,628 2,299
Net cash used in investing activities WEEHPTAIR & 55 (10,352) (18,459)
Cash flows from financing activities METEHMERERE
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FEfRTRR R B OFl L), /14N
shareholders (426,200) 186,000
Increase in loan from a related company KE—KEENRERIEN 2,485,326 662,818
Proceed from bank borrowings REARITEEMSHKIE 3,040,500 1,174,000
Interest paid BARFE (20,200) (20,000)
Dividend paid BB (260,467) (173,645)
Net cash from financing activities REREMSIRE TR 4,818,959 1,829,173
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEE B BINFE 1,561,371 22,759
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥38& MIE&EEIER 210,861 188,102
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRBe RIS EEIER
(note 29) (Kiz£29) 1,772,232 210,861
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A B ¥ R M

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 10 April 1996 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Company’s shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 23 July 1996. The
address of its registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The Company’s parents are Active Dynamic Limited (“Active
Dynamic”) and Sure Expert Limited (“Sure Expert”) and the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider its
ultimate holding company is Active Dynamic. Active Dynamic
and Sure Expert are both incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The principal activity of the
Company continues to be investment holding. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 April 2014

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and

HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

NREH
ARRAR—NANARNFOATHERBEARE
—NN\—FREEEBRETMKLAER
RARRA - RRBKRMBBE—ANAREFLA
“t=ZHRERBEMERZAERAF ([H
R ET e RRABZEMPERREES
FMENFR [ ABER —EHHEE -

KX 7] 2 &R 7] AActive Dynamic Limited
([Active Dynamic]) K Sure Expert Limited
([Sure Expert]) * MARBEE([£E])R
A H & % I A 7] AActive Dynamic °
Active Dynamic & Sure Expertg 1A % & &
RS ([RBEXES]) MK -

ARBREWMBRAN T XGRS AN E
B  ARRZEIZEBNARERR X
MB ARz EREBHNMBHRRME21 -

REMERBMBEREEA(EBHM

HRE 2R )

(a) BRAIET BT BB ME R
HEA — —F-MFN[—H

BAER
BEGENERSE HAHIRHEER

TRERE

BAMBRE LA REEE

F10% - BBHH

REEAE 125 R

ERGHEAETR

ZET(ZE—%)
ERGHRAENR MEIACEEREA

ZIEFT AR

BE(BARYBHRE HE
REZREE)F 2%

BT SCM I S R AT R
EE B HETREAYE -

i3

SE TR 3258 2 15T — HiH
MEELETRAEE

R A

s

N
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

68

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 April 2014 (continued)

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement. The
amendments are applied retrospectively.

As a result, the Group has included a disclosure in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19
(2011)

Amendments to HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 EMERBUBEREEAN(EFEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHREEAD @

(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEMKRERZHT K

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 2011-2013
Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment to clarify how the
gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
are treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.
The carrying amount of the asset is restated to revalued
amount. The accumulated depreciation may be
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may be
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset and the accumulated
depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

B EEMBREEN @

1 ROE-mECA—AXZEMBZ
FEBRER

2 RoF-mELA-ARZH#EMHZ
FRPMEXSEERL AR 1%
BEZRS

3 RoF-AF—A-ARZEEHZ
FEHIRIEN

4 RoF—F—A-ARZEEHZ
FEHIRIERN

5 RoF-NFE—A-ARZEEHZ
FEHIRI LR

—E-EFE_Z-_FFH.- =
——FE2_F-=FRHPR=_FT—=
FER_F-NERHFEENE
BIFFEREBRRERMZIETHZE
BRI NER 2 EAERRNDRIER
288 ZFBEIRREBRESE
B 1652 - BB R E 2 5]
UEREWMEREASMER  EEE
HREMRFEZHE BEZR
HESEINAKEHESE Rt E
ATHEEZRMAEYNHE - E ' K
HMAEIREEHEERAEER —
Bz AN FUAZE  MRFTITERH
BREENRARABEHELST KA RE
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2

70

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

2 BRHAEBHMBHREER(FBEH
BHREED @

(b) EEMERREKRZHT R

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at
amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair value
through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss model
in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

RAEBUEREER ([FBE
B|REED ]

(b) EEMERRERZHT R

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

BT ERMBREZER
ERMBREENEISE —FFE
L6

BEIRHT A RS B — s e RRAE LR -
ZAER 2 LR A E BN R AL
A1 P 8 A o B S AR TS My MR e P -
THEERRZEBRAAR B LE
EmkRGEEEES KE - BEY
B ERERIE 15 BB TR E TR
B3l BREEBEEEEMNF 185 [
@] BEGERE NRIEEEH)
KiARRE) -

ERMBHRELEANF1SHERUEME
SRR

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o E—H: BIEEFPZEH

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in e B BAEHNZEHNEE
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price e B=H%: BEXXRHE

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each o FMF: BRHBHBEEFEL
performance obligation BE

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance o ERI REBHEFETHE
obligation is satisfied AU

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BEMBREENF15REBHEE
Wi RE 2 FERS - ZEHE
X FNRBEE BB RELERRE
FER 2777k - ZERITREREZ R TTELUL
BB T EFERHE

AL

(a)

BREH
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M ZFIBERBEEM RS EA R
o o BRAMBHRRITCEINE
BHERFGAARARES LR
REBRBGOMREZEBEWRES
I8 o
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3 BASIS OF PREPARAT'ON (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except certain
properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values or revalued amounts as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 4.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and it subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in statement of profit of loss and other
comprehensive income. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of

4 FESTHBE®
(a) EBEHRGEEE®W

consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

74

(continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation (continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in
accordance with the transition requirements in the
standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to
estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there
is a contractual arrangement that confers joint control
over the relevant activities of the arrangement to the
group and at least one other party. Joint control is
assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

o Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

76

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangements (continued)
In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

° The structure of the joint arrangement;

o The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post —
acquisition change in the joint ventures’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Goodwill arising from business
combinations

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over
the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on the acquisition date, after reassessment.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Goodwill arising from business

4 FESTHBE®
(d) EBEHMEEEE®

combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

78

(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

The land classified as being held under finance leases
and buildings thereon are stated at valuation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Fair value is
determined by an independent firm of qualified property
valuers. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these
assets does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings held for own use are generally dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (e)

4 FEEHBEERw®
M - BERRE®

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

— Building situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

—  Leasehold improvement, furniture,

fixture and equipment

—  Motor vehicles

—  Yacht

10%-50%

20%—-33%
10%

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year in which they
are incurred.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Upon the disposal of property, the relevant portion of
the revaluations reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the property revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

80

()

(9)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expenses, over
the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprise food and beverage, consumable
and other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make to
the sales.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments

U

Financial assets

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

82

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

U

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets
are part of a group of financial assets which is
managed and its performance evaluated on a fair
value basis according to a documented
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtors’ financial difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

84

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including
trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Gains or losses are
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

@

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset where
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or where the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are ready convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
intangible assets, and investments in subsidiaries to
determine whether there is any indication that these as
sets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e. the
greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use) of a non-financial asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount . An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.
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86

(continued)

(k) Employee benefits

U

(i)

Short term employee benefits in the form of
leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the company in
an independently-administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. The company’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are recognised as an expense in
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as incurred.

For all its employees in Macau, fixed contributions
are made based on the employment term and are
charged to profit and loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
retirement security system.

Obligations for contributions to social security
fund are recognised as an expense in statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Employee benefits (continued)

(0

(iii) Share-based payments
Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments.
Details regarding the share-based payments are
set out in note 37.

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Share-based
payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Share-based payments
to parties other than employees (and those providing
similar services) are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group cannot
estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or services
received, the Group is required to measure the fair
value by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

88

(0

(m)

Share-based payments (continued)

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the services rendered in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense and
credited to a share-based payment reserve under
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve over the remaining vesting period.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to share premium.
The proceeds received net of any direct attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be released directly to retained
earnings.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes profit
or loss items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure to settle the obligation.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

90

(n)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition
Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised as
income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal mandate
when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

Revenue arising from service provided for gaming
operations in mass market halls, electronic gaming
halls and VIP rooms is recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered and the Group is entitled
to the share of gross win and gross loss in respect of
the operating performance from the gaming operator.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised
upon the provision of the accommodation services.

Revenue from food and beverage sales and other
ancillary services are recognised upon the provision of
goods and services.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(r) Related parties
(iy A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(a) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

®)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(iy  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The non-current assets are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal.

Intangible assets

(i) Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss. The estimated useful live states as follows:

Permits 24 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Intangible assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired (see the accounting
policies in respect of impairment of non-financial
assets other than goodwill above).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence
arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews
on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to
be valid.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Useful lives of intangible assets

In accordance with HKAS 38, the Group estimates the useful
lives of intangible assets in order to determine the amount of
amortisation expenses to be recorded. The useful livers are
estimated at the time the asset is acquired/transferred based
on the lease term. The Group also performs annual reviews
on whether any change in local regulation to reflect useful
lives.

Estimated fair value of leasehold properties

The fair value of each hotel property individually is
determined at the end of the reporting period by independent
professional valuers using the income approach whereby the
incomes derived from the hotel and casino operations with
regard to past trading accounts and the rental income
derived from existing tenancies on the property interest are
capitalised at an appropriate rate of return with due
allowance for outgoings and expenses wherever applicable.
This methodology is based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the
property and future economic conditions. The fair value of
each leasehold property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the

property.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amount of that asset will be performed.
Triggering events include significant adverse changes in the
market value of an asset, changes in the business or
regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgement from
management with respect to whether such an event has
occurred.

Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the present
value of estimated net future cash flows which the Group
expects to generate from the future use of the asset, plus
residual value of the asset on disposal. Where the
recoverable amount of non-financial assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment is performed based on the
discounted cash flow analysis. This analysis relies on factors
such as forecast of future performance and long-term growth
rates and the selection of discount rates. If these forecast
and assumptions prove to be inaccurate or circumstances
change, further write-down or reversal of the write-down of
the carrying value of the non-financial assets may be
required.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment loss on advances to customers in
margin financing, trade and other receivables
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of advances
to customers in margin financing, trade and other
receivables. Appropriate impairment for estimate d
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit and loss when
there is objective evidence that the amounts is not
recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aged
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised based on the estimation of the future cash flow
expected to receive and a suitable discounted rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in the Macau and Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of the
related payments. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will have
impact on the income tax and/or deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services, and has seven (31
March 2014: seven) reporting operating segments as follows:

Financial services segments:

— Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements
segment is the provision of brokerage, underwriting
and placements services for dealings in securities on
recognised stock exchanges.

— Margin and initial public offers (“IPO”) financing
segment is the provision of credits in these
transactions.

—  Other financial services mainly include provision of
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage
and asset management.

Hotel and gaming segments:

— Hotel ownership and management segment is the
operation of hotels and provision of hotel management
services.

— Food and beverage segment is the operation of
restaurants in hotels.

— Casino segment is the operation of casino in hotels.
Securities investment segment:
—  Securities investment segment is the trading of listed

securities.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable operating segments.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation (adjusted EBITDA). Interest income and
expenditure and certain income and expenses (including
depreciation, amortisation, finance cost, taxation, impairment
losses, gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, gain on lapse of derivative financial liabilities and
share of results of joint ventures) are not included in the result
of each operating segment that is reviewed by the
management. Other information provided, except as noted
below, to the management is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

TRER @

EIBE D RIESIE H TR E N 2 AR A4S 0 A
TEHBEBEERDE ZRER ML ZELS - H4E
FRIVDIBBEEHELAERGTFE « ISR
ree R S AT &R LAERTE o FIB WA K
HARETFWRARAS (BEHFE - #HH -
RERA - THIE  REEE -  LEWE W
ERZHEzWZE(GE) TEefaidk
BZWERDREECEEE) TS AL
EEEERMzSEROBEE - B THE
G IRETFEEREB 2 HEMER 22 A8
AREBITEIRR TR E — & -

DEEWETIRERFRZHER 2 R
AT - MERERS 2 KB IBEP Y
ZETENAEBRELEMEMBRRMARA
E—H-
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 2HEER@®
Operating segments ES Sk
The following tables represent segment information of the TREVARNEBREEBIRHE 2 AEES F
Group provided to the Group’s management for the year REE-_T—RAFR_T—NE=A=1+—
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively. HIEFEZDEEE -
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HBE—=E—FF=F=1T—HIFE
Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin Other Financial  ownership
and and IPO financial service and  Foodand Securities
placements  financing services  business management  beverage Casino  Investment Total
RELR
BEEL.  BROH Mt eRER  EEER BRR
AEREE  RERE  SRER £H RER 7R BY  R3RE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tén TR Tin TR TEn Tén TER Tin
Segment Revenue pox 1
External customers xR 421192 1,082,742 31404 1,541,338 220,100 39,552 678,284 - 2419214
Inter-segment HEH 4 - 960 984 37,760 - 10,771 - 49,515
41216 1,082,742 32,364 1,542,322 257,860 39,552 689,055 - 2528789
Adjusted EBITDA EREANAS SR
HEREHAER 457,192 956,637 31407 1445236 174,274 (2,209) 301,319 (5,723 1,912,897
Segment Assets PEEE 28,182,124 3,147,437 555,799 473,533 38,644 32,397,537
Capital expenditure U - 10,163 1,829 2,449 - 14,441
Segment Liabilities PEEE 12,690,956 328,062 9,683 23,308 5 13,052,014
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®
Operating segments (continued) S (0D

For the year ended 31 March 2014 el T = s =) e

Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin Other Financial -~ ownership
and and IPO financial service and Food and Securities
placements financing services business  management  beverage Casino Investment Total
RELR
s BRAR i eRRE  EEEA Rmk
BEREE  YERE  SRRE £ k&R HiE BY  B5RE &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§000

TER TEL TER TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Segment Revenue PRhE

External customers NIRE 200,698 659,204 29,990 889,892 209,246 37,650 710,897 - 1,847,685
Inter-segment HEH 31 - 960 991 37,924 - 7,152 - 46,067
200,729 659,204 30,950 890,883 247170 37,650 718,049 - 1,893,752

Adjusted EBITDA BRERHAS  FEH
RERBHIERN 218,451 613,990 29,990 862,431 169,660 (6,547) 312,209 (830) 1,336,923
Segment Assets PEEE 21892079 2,609,053 441510 490,571 48692 25481906
Capital expenditure EASH 87 18,468 3430 3,063 - 25,048
Segment Liabilities PEER 7,285,705 240,845 10,398 33,283 5 7,570,236
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6

Operating segments (continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,

assets and liabilities

TEER®

ES Sk [

DN - KALEKRGTHE - FIEH - 7E
FEHE BN BEEENEB2HER

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Segment revenue a1 € 2,528,789 1,893,752
Elimination of inter-segment revenue HEE S RS (49,515) (46,067)
Consolidated revenue mAaWwE 2,479,274 1,847,685
Adjusted EBITDA RARKETRE - FrEH -
TERBHEAET 1,912,897 1,336,923

Other income E At A 3,396 4,163
Interest income B WA 863 620
Exchange gain/(loss) i 5 Uz (E518) 1,804 (4,328)
Corporate staff cost AE 8 TRKA (98,872) (87,242)
Corporate overhead NEIEERX (174,572) (115,361)
Depreciation e (132,495) (121,049)
Amortisation 3| (14,132) -
Gain on lapse of derivative PTHES BB BRI WS

financial liabilities - 21,722
Share of results of joint ventures DIHEETEER (23) (1,262)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMEHEZ

plant and equipment (BB), W (69) 310
Finance cost L& A AR (20,200) (58,800)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BELEEFLEE

held for sale WIEEE - (74,741)
Taxation 18 (207,760) (125,235)
Profit for the year FREF 1,270,837 775,720
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments (continued)
Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,
assets and liabilities (continued)

6 DEER®
E Sk (0 )

DEWE - KABRTRE - AEH - 8

REEMBNREERABEZHER @

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Segment assets PTHEE 32,397,537 25,481,905

Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBE B 6,107 6,107
Intangible assets/intangible assets BILEE S EHEEFEE

held for sale 308,553 322,685

Available-for-sale investments A HERE 930 1,387

Unallocated corporate assets RABEARIEE 34,614 61,847

Total assets EEHAE 32,747,741 25,873,931

Segment liabilities PEERE 13,052,014 7,570,236

Amounts due to shareholders FET IR B T8 2,130,911 2,410,000

Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEARBEE 11,309 3,806

Total liabilities BEEE 15,194,234 9,984,042

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax assets, intangible assets/intangible
assets held for sale, available-for-sale investments, and
assets used jointly by reportable segments.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than amounts due to shareholders and liabilities for
which reportable segments are jointly liable.

REZDVBERARDESBBHER

s WREEBEEE BVEE/FHELH
EBVEE AHHERERERD
BHRARERZEEI  FMEEEED

EEZ2HNER -

s KBRENEERFRELZHENER
fic

ZBEN TBREESD

B
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments (continued)

Geographical segment information

The Group’s financial services are located in Hong Kong and
the other operations are mainly located in Macau of The
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

TEER®

ES Sk [

HWESEER

AEEZ&RRBURES - mEMERL
FEMURPEARLFE ([ ])BPT -

NEBEIERBEEZRBEEFMEIEDEZFF
BaR -

2015 2014
—E—1F —ZE—MF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT T

Hong Kong B 11,008,494 11,012,181
Macau S 3,915,182 3,287,860
Canada nEx 308,553 =
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 15,232,229 14,300,041

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and statutory
deposit for financial services business.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of corresponding years contributing
over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as follows:

Wist JERBEETCBIEEERBEEER L HR
BRBZERE

FERFER
HEFEAKRE R P 2 Wb ANk EE ks
HBiB10% 2 EEHAT ¢

2015 2014
—ZE-hHfF —E—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Sociedade De Jogos De Macau, S.A. RPIEERMDER AR (NRE])
("SIM”) (note) (Hizt) 660,246 690,937

Note: Revenue from income from casino

Kingston Financial Group Limited / Annual Report 2015
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7 REVENUE 7 W&
2015 2014
—E-h%F —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Financial services business & BhAR TS 15
— securities brokerage, underwriting — BHLL - BIERELE
and placements 427,192 200,698
— margin and IPO financing —RBEREALHBEERE 1,082,742 659,204
— other financial services — Hth 2 5t AR5 31,404 29,990
Hotels and gaming business B RIER
— room rental — ElEs 209,095 202,503
— food and beverage — R R EE 57,589 57,608
— gaming revenue — BR Kk 660,246 690,937
— other rental income — HmpHALlA 11,006 6,745
2,479,274 1,847,685
8 OTHER INCOME 8 HflA
2015 2014
—E-a% —F-lF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Handling Charge FES 20,709 12,593
Dividend income A% B4 A 1,628 2,299
Reversal of impairment loss on advances #E[%FHRBSFE
to customers in margin financing, trade AR E 5 & B E U AR
and other receivables ZRIERE - 16,085
Bad debts recovery 1 =] 22 AR - 14,807
Gain on lapse of derivative MmEESRAEERS KR
financial liabilities - 21,722
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - HE MEE 2 W
plant and equipment - 310
Management fee income ERBKA 420 600
Sundry income LT N 2,964 3,564
25,721 71,980
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9 STAFF COSTS 9 BIKK
2015 2014
—E-—FE —E—JOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEEENE)
remuneration)
— salaries, wages and other benefits — M TEREAMEF 211,736 189,119
— contributions to defined contribution — EREMEFGRIRGTEIHR
retirement plan 1,247 1,090
Total staff costs 8 T A48 212,983 190,209
10 FINANCE COST 10 BE KA
2015 2014
S —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on promissory notes A =B B - 58,800
Interest on amounts due to a shareholder & —Z [R5 318 2 F 2 20,200 -
20,200 58,800
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11 TAXATION 11 |
2015 2014
—g-HF —ZT-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax: BPERTIE

Hong Kong profits tax %5 BRI 207,839 128,283
Macau profit tax RIS 5,382 1,214
Underprovision in respect of prior years i@ﬁtif;ﬁé‘ﬁT\E 619 =
Deferred tax EERITA (6,080) (4,262)
207,760 125,235

(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year () BEZT—HF-—A=1+—HILFE "
ended 31 March 2015 at a rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%). BEANEH D EBE165% (=T —N

(b)

Macau Complementary Tax has been provided for the
year ended 31 March 2015 at a rate of 12% (2014:
12%). During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Good Start Group
Limited, received a tax notice issued by Macau
Financial Services Bureau dated 29 April 2014
assessing its Macau Complementary Tax payable for
the year of assessment 2009 and 2010 to be
approximately HK$15,000,000 and HK$20,000,000
respectively. No such taxation has been provided for
current and previous years up to the year ended 31
March 2015. Details are disclosed in note 44.

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions in calculated at
rate prevailing in respective jurisdictions.

S EREMARAY ) —

F :16.5%) cT IR B -

BE-TZ—AF=A=+—HLFE
@Fﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mmﬂﬁf12%(:7—?
—PO4F : 12%) 5T IRHHE - REEC
—RAFE=ZA=1+—HBLEE KX&£E
2 2 & [} B A 7 Good Start Group
Limited Y EI3R P9 81 B = P2 i B Hﬁﬁ'ﬁ

—HENAZ+THBZFHR
iv%mﬁﬁfffﬁﬁ)& ==
FRBEE 2B ESETHR D
A1 49 /15,000,000 7% 7t & 20,000,000
BT RAFERBEE-_T—AF=
AR=1T—HLEFEZBAFE  HE
BB IAFTREE - BEAFTIBRW
T44HFE -

REMBDEERELE ZABHRIRE
BAER CRITHEAE -
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11 TAXAT'ON (continued)

108

(d)

11 BB
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit (d)
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FARAENBGEBEa NEMEEIE
R ABR B RDE RS BRI T -

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Profit before taxation & 55 BT Y Al 1,478,597 900,955
Tax calculated at domestic BRI EA6.5% st E 2

tax rate of 16.5% Frii8 243,969 148,658
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERE L 2

operating in other jurisdictions Ll YNSIE R -7 (14,875) (14,684)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TANPRAS 2 R 2 62,774 116,100
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBA 2 RIsR 2 (85,618) (129,862)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AERIEIEFIIBE & 1,331 8,576
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised EAARER 2 HIBEE - (2,939)
Underprovision in prior years BAEFERETR 619 =
Others Hth (440) (614)
Taxation for the year FAIE 207,760 125,235
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12

13

14

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following:

12

BR Bt Al 2 A
PRBLATEFIEIR (5EA) TFIER -

2015 2014

—g-EF -—FT-QmF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

Auditors’ remuneration 1% E AN B & 1,995 2,126

Marketing, advertising and promotion B EER

expenses EEREZ 83,059 83,359

Operating lease charges REHAOME R 31,927 35,955
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BER&E

plant and equipment 218, (WEs) 69 (310)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a profit of HK$241,868,000 (2014:
HK$111,504,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 September 2014 and 2013.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK1.5
cents per share).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year were amounted to HK$260,467,000 (2014:
HK$173,645,000).

13

14

SHUERMEMARAT ) - HAEER

KABES AEAERF

KRREE ANELEGE RN BIERAR R
%R N R I 5 80241,868,0008 L ( — =
—PO4E : 111,504,000 7T) Z % F ©

2
BEEEEE—T—NFR-Z—=FNA
=+ BIEAEAZPHRE -

EERTESEpEE_S—hE=—A=1+—
BIEFERMNKRBKRE(ZZE—NF : Fi%
1.5781l) -

RERBAE RIRS 2 £ — B B EERAA

N AR s IR IR B A 260,467,000 T ( —
T4 1 173,645,000/ 7T) °
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 SRER
2015 2014
—Z-h%F —T—mEF
HK cent HK cent
74l P
Basic earnings per share FRREREAH 7.25 4.44
Diluted earnings per share BikEERT 7.25 4.44
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary FEEREARBAMNER 2B REE
shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per AR ANFEFHE LT
share are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-a¥ —ZT—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Profit for the purpose of basic earnings ST ESRERBF ZEF
per share 1,259,636 771,060
2015 2014
—E-HEfF —E—mF
Weighted average number of TEA N S
ordinary shares 12,114,480,666 12,114,480,666
Weighted average number of A RE ] AT AR B S AR
non-redeemable convertible A9 £k
preference shares 5,250,000,000 5,250,000,000
Weighted average number of shares for the — EtEGRRERZEF 7 I&H
purposes of basic earnings per share NNHESE 5 £R 17,364,480,666 17,364,480,666
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBEER
The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic HREE T —RAFR_ZT—NF=
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential A=1T—HLFEXEDRTEBTH
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended BEEKR NEREERF EERRE

31 March 2015 and 2014. KAEFEE -
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16 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

16 HEMZEWA

2015 2014
—E-F1F —TmE
Before tax Tax  Aftertax Before tax Tax  After tax
BiAl BIE Bk iRl A Bt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TET THT THT THT THTL THT
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold &+ MEF 2 Efh &k
land and buildings 742,588 (89,111) 653,477 550,818 (66,098) 484,720
Unrealised loss arising from change A H & %4 A FEE
in fair value of available-for-sale  E4 7 KEBER
investments (229) - (229) (517) - (517)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ HME G EREL 2
translation of foreign operations M =5 - - - (23,404) - (23,404)
Other comprehensive income HEib2EBA 742,359 (89,111) 653,248 526,897 (66,098) 460,799

17 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of remuneration paid and payable to directors of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014

17 EEME

BE-F-OAFR-F-NF=A=+—H
LFE  ENRENARRRIEEZME ST

and is set as follows: NN
Salaries,
allowances Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’  and benefits bonus scheme 2015
fee in kind payment  contribution Total
E2 =3 iR Bfk:td  —B-IF
EsHe RENANE NES #X &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR THER T TR
Executive directors WTES
Mr. Chu Nicholas Yuk-yui RRBEE - 7,260 5,000 17 12,277
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah ZREQT - 20,249 20,000 17 40,266
Mr. Ho Chi Ho fIERLE - 1,800 1,200 17 3,017
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen ERERL 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lau Man Tak xR 100 - - - 100
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan KACEAE 100 - - - 100
300 29,309 26,200 51 55,860
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17 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

112

17 EEME w0

Salaries,
allowances  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ and benefits in bonus scheme 2014
fee kind payment  contribution Total
Eo =il MiETEA BIREE  —E-RF
E2HE  REDHE 5 {5 G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR AT TAT THT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chu Nicholas Yuk-yui RABESE - 6,818 5,000 15 11,833
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah TRELZL = 18,957 15,000 15 33972
Mr. Ho Chi Ho* ISR - 447 - 4 451
Independent non-executive directors BIEHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EREEL 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lau Man Tak BE 100 _ _ _ 100
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan KBCEAE 100 - - _ 100
300 26,222 20,000 34 46,556

* Mr. Ho Chi Ho (“Mr. Ho”) is one of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 March
2014. Before the date of appointment of director, Mr. Ho’s
salaries and other emoluments and retirement scheme
contributions were HK$1,969,000 and HK$11,000 respectively.
Taking into account Mr. Ho’s director’s remuneration as per
table, his total salary and other emoluments and retirement
scheme contributions for the year ended 31 March 2014 were
HK$2,416,000 and HK$15,000 respectively.

The discretionary bonus payment was determined by
reference to the individual performance of the directors and

WEFEE(AEL]) BAEFBEEZ-F
—WFE=ZA=1+—HIFEAEZZHA
TZ— REZTREFHAF WL
ZEFHLREMBE KRR E 555
#1,969,000 7T % 11,0007 ° it K& F&
Itz EEZWNE  ERBEZ=F—MF
A=+ HUFEZHE RAMB T4
BELA R R OKET EI(7 34 55 51 45 2,416,000 % 7T
X 15,000 T °

BISIEANRDN2EEZ 2 BAARBRETE
WEFHFMEZE G4 -

approved by the Remuneration Committee.

No directors have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

There were no emoluments paid or payable as an
inducement to directors to join the Group and no emoluments
were paid or payable to the directors as compensation for
loss of office during the year ended 31 March 2015 and

2014.
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18

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 3 (2014:
3) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 17.
The emoluments in respect of the remaining 2 (2014: 2)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

18 REHF AL

EEESFALFR =R (ZT—HNF: =
FIREE  REZHMESRHEI7RE -
HHEMA (ZF—0F : MB)&RSFALLZ
M T

2015 2014

—g-FF -T-mF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Salaries and other emoluments e hHMME 15,646 11,505
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 34 30
15,680 11,535

The emolument of the above individual was within the
following band:

ERALZEENFIATEE :

2015 2014

—E-RF —=-mE

Number of Number of

person person

AE A#

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T £ 5,500,000 7 7T - 1

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

6,000,001 /& 7T % 6,500,000% 7T
7,000,001 /7T % 7,500,000 % 7T
8,000,001 & JT % 8,500,000 %5 7T

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest
paid individual as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31

March 2015 and 2014.

f& -

HE-2-HFER-F-WE=A=+—§
IR - B R FA T S
Bl - {EA S AR B2 SR A
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19 Y% BERRE

114

Leasehold Leasehold
land and improvement,
buildings furniture,
held for own fixture and Motor
The Group REE use equipment vehicles Yacht Total
BEERAZ HEWE
HELH £E- KR
kEF RERZE "B iid &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TER TET TERT TER
Cost or valuation B E
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FNA—A 2,721,270 343,534 6,621 25,711 3,097,136
Additions NE - 24,996 778 - 25,774
Disposal HeE = = (1,484) = (1,484)
Adjustment on revaluation EffAR 476,760 - - - 476,760
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NF=A=+—H 3,198,030 368,530 5,915 25,711 3,598,186
Representing: R&:
Cost B AR - 368,530 5,915 25,711 400,156
At 2014 valuation BT -NEHE 3,198,030 - - - 3,198,030
3,198,030 368,530 5,915 25,711 3,598,186
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NFEMNA—H 3,198,030 368,530 5,915 25,711 3,598,186
Additions NE - 15,222 - 11 15,233
Disposal deE - (1,027) (1,163) - (2,190)
Adjustment on revaluation BHE 653,120 - - - 653,120
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 3,851,150 382,725 4,752 25,722 4,264,349
Representing: &
Cost B - 382,725 4,752 25,722 413,199
At 2015 valuation B-_T-h&HE 3,851,150 - - - 3,851,150
3,851,150 382,725 4,752 25,722 4,264,349
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=FmA—H - 232,470 5,106 11,769 249,345
Charge for the year FERMGR 74,058 43,809 602 2,580 121,049
Eliminated on disposals N ER - - (1,484) - (1,484)
Adjustment on revaluation EfHAE (74,058) = = = (74,058)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—-NE=A=+—H - 276,279 4,224 14,349 294,852
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—NEMA—H - 276,279 4,224 14,349 294,852
Charge for the year ERMG 89,467 39,984 463 2,581 132,495
Eliminated on disposals TS B T 8 - - (523) - (523)
Adjustment on revaluation SfhHE (89,467) - - - (89,467)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—AF=A=1+—H - 316,263 4,164 16,930 337,357
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 3,851,150 66,462 588 8,792 3,926,992
At 31 March 2014 RZT-—WE=A=+—H 3,198,030 92,251 1,691 11,362 3,303,334
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(a)

(b)

The leasehold land and buildings held for own use are
situated in Macau under medium term leases.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings for own use
were revalued as at 31 March 2015 and 2014. The
valuations were carried out by AA Property Services
Limited, an independent valuer who holds recognised
and relevant professional qualifications and has recent
experience in the location and category of the
leasehold land and buildings being valued. The
Group’s management has discussion with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each reporting date.

19 ¥  BERRE®

(a) MRRFAZFHIEERHEELHRET
THRIRH B EAFA o

(b) AEEFIFERcEELHEETR
—E-RER_F-MEEH=ET-
BETEM - BHHBEEMRE
WEBREBRARET - ARMGERD
FERANREBEEXER - LHMH
BEHELHMREFTHAELR RERA
MRS AEEEEEERSME
BEETHERENSM RAE MG
EREREESR -
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

(b)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of leasehold land and buildings are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
hierarchy input(s)
ATESR EEETEETIN ¢

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTIRRBARE

19 Y% - BEERRE®

(&)

TRUSIBHERATEIEZHA
B 2 B SRR A0 AT 2 LK 3
RBTZ AT (EERHMER 2 HME
BT B4 A IR DA R A T AE £ BT B
SrATEER(E—REE=H) 2
& o

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair

value Sensitivity
FTBREBAUER
AVHEZEE HRE

As at 31 March 2015
RZE-RF=R=+—H

Properties in Macau

kS

116

Income capitalisation approach

The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation rates;
(2)  Daily room rates;

(8)  Monthly casino performance;

WABTERE

TERABER

(1) BREAX:
@ *TEERE2:
@) BHEARE:

Level 3
=R

Capitalisation rates, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income potential,

condition, of 4% to 13%.
BHARESPAEN BRERER W5
HERRITTR  BREARRA%E13%

Daily room rates of HK$846 to HK$915 in
average for the base level.

EAEREEES TN To46/BTE915
BT o

Monthly casino performance of HK$4.60
million to HK$22.27 million in average.
B58 AR BTN T4,600,000ETE
22,270,000 87T
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The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value.
nature of the property, and prevailing market BAARRHMS - ATEHE -

The higher the daily room
rate, the higher the fair value.

ERERALHR  ATEY

’%o

The higher the monthly casino
performance, the higher the
fair value.

BIER%ENR  ATEY

’%o

If the capitalisation rate to the valuation
model is 1% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
decrease by approximately
HK$383,025,000 or increase by
approximately HK$511,661,000
respectively.
fnEEREAZ AT EAE L /T’
1% MABELEREHIE  ANE
ZIREER RE#1383,025,000 8703k
451,661,000 8T ©

If the daily room rate to the valuation
model is 5% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$31,801,000.

Bz EEERES L/ TR’
5% @ MR EME &R - A%
ZEEEARIE,/ D 431,801,000
BT

If the casino performance to the valuation
model is 5% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$44,198,000.

fAEEEL 2888 AEE L/ TH
5% - MAE AtE &R TE - Blx
ZIRAEH R0,/ R 4)44,198,000
BT
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
(b)  (continued)

Fair value
hierarchy

DVEER

Valuation technique(s) and key
input(s)

HERHRERBARE

Significant unobservable inputs

EXRURRBARE

unobservable inputs to fair

19 Y% - BEERRZRE®

Sensitivity

HRE

As at 31 March 2014
RZZ-WE=A=1—-H

Propertiesin Macau ~ Level 3

EPIE E

Income capitalisation approach

The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation rates;
(2)  Daily room rates;

(8)  Monthly casino performance;

WABTERE

(1) BREERZ:
(2 ZEEERAL:
(

TRBAREA:
)
)

3 BEBARE:

Capitalisation rates, taking into account of

the capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property, and prevailing market BFERKHS - ATEHE o

condition, of 4% to 15%.

B RASRAE D BRERER  NE
BERROTR - BREFXRI%E15% °

Daily room rates of HK$761 to HK$922 in
average for the base level.
EAZRERMS AN TI61ETE 022
BT o

Monthly casino performance of HK$6.87
million to HK$21.8 million in average.
58 AZET9/) 76,870,008 TE
21,800,000 7T ©

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value.

The higher the daily room
rate, the higher the fair value.

ERSRRLNE - AFEL
5o

The higher the monthly casino
performance, the higher the

REEAREER  ATEY

If the capitalisation rate to the valuation
model is 1% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
decrease by approximately
HK$307,149,000 or increase by
approximately HK$401,437,000
respectively
fHEEREA 2 BRERE L7/ TH
1% MAAREERARIE AR
ZEREEA Rl 4307,149,000 75
04 401,437,000 T

If the daily room rate to the valuation
model is 5% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$29,033,000.

Bz EEERAES L/ T’
5% MAEEMEBRHTE - BINE
ZSEHEA RIS,/ H L #29,033,000
BT e

If the casino performance to the valuation
model is 5% higher/lower, while all the
other variables were held constant, the
carrying value of Property would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$59,412,000.

nEEEAZ RS A%E L/ TR
5% @ MR EMB AR TE - A%
ZERAES R,/ R 4159,412,000
BT o
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(continued)

118

(b)

(continued)

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings for own
use in Macau as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are
measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings. At the end of each
reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. The
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available,
the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the board of directors of the
Company.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.
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19 Y% - BEERRE®

(b)

(&)
R-ZE—RAERZZE-—EHF=2
=t—B HEERZRMEEL
NEF 2 AFETIERERT AR
BABBZAERNE  ROBRR
RTEERE=R -

NHEFERAEBE

REFAAEREE LM REFTZAF
BN AEERAEERTBRETS
2R - MY BE - RBARE - BIAX
SEERRAERE=SHREMYR
SEHELMREFETEE B
EREHPR AEEEEESRAE
RINEAEMETSIE  RFE AR
FEFERYMBEREZ MERM
R NBUE - W A {5 BT 5 A B
BEFSLHBARE FAREREL
ZENREME —MBATE - WL HE
F_RBABE  AEE/ERES
FE_MBABE 2 EERN - HEE
ZRAFELESAZE  AERAR
AEZREFRKBRA

FA - BERMLEZS
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(b)

(continued)
The movements during the year in the balance of Level
3 fair value measurements are as follows:

19 ¥  BERRE®

(b)

(%&)
B=MATEHELBZFRRDN
ARA

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—mEF

The Group HK$°000 HK$'000

rEHE FET T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring HUES (B =REFEATE)

fair value) 3,198,030 2,721,270

Gains: included in other comprehensive Uiz : 5t A H b 2 E A

income 653,120 476,760
Closing balance (level 3 recurring HAR & (B =Rt A T(E)

fair value) 3,851,150 3,198,030

As at 31 March 2015, the gross amount of revaluation
surplus was HK$742,588,000 (2014: HK$550,818,000).
After tax surplus of HK$653,477,000 (2014:
HK$484,720,000) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
property revaluation reserve of the Group and the
balance was recognised in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings
held for own use with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$2,970,000,000 (2014: nil) to secure
bank loans of the Group, as disclosed in note 35(b), at
the end of the reporting period.

(c)

(d)

SHUERMEMARAT ) - HAEER

R-E—RF=A=1+—8 EFEE
B4 %58 A 742,588,000 7T (—Z — 1
£ : 550,818,000/ 7T ) ° Br i 18 & &4
653,477,000/ w( = & — M F :
484,720,000 7T) E R H M 2 E A
R WEASBE 2 MEEHRHER
o BBAIEERREMEEBR
TR o

AT FES5(b) T FE - MRS HIR
AEEE R AEEFTERITE FIK T
8% M & £92,970,000,000 T ( = &
—POF - ) 2 FEE REE T RIE
=
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(continued)

(e) Had these properties held for own use been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$1,348,324,000 (2014:

HK$1,387,125,000).

19 Y% - BEERRE®

(e) BRZEFHIEEAVEZRKANERR
T ES R AR EEER
1,348,324,0007% jo( = & — MM F :
1,387,125,0007& ) °

Leasehold
improvement,
furniture,
fixtures and Motor
The Company AAT] equipment vehicles Total
HEWME
£ - &KW
HERFZE RE &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET F#&xT
Cost B AN
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=FMA—H 6,422 1,041 7,463
Additions VN1 32 767 799
Disposals e - (868) (868)
At 31 March 2014 and RZZE—HE=HA=+—H
1 April 2014 N =—F—FImA—H 6,454 940 7,394
Disposals k= - (767) (767)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RE=HA=+—H 6,454 173 6,627
Accumulated depreciation 2t e
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FWA—H 2,915 1,041 3,956
Charge for the period BNk 823 115 938
Eliminated on disposals B Y 8 - (868) (868)
At 31 March 2014 and RZE—MFE=A=+—H
1 April 2014 MZFE—MFMHH—H 3,738 288 4,026
Charge for the year FRHIRR 822 13 835
Eliminated on disposal ek=i s - (128) (128)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—AF=A=+—H 4,560 173 4,733
Net book value REDFE
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—hE=H=+—H 1,894 - 1,894
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NF=ZA=+—H 2,716 652 3,368
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20 GOODWILL 20 &
2015 2014
—®-EF -T-m4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Carrying amount of goodwill PR REE 10,996,683 10,996,683

The carrying amount of goodwill relating to the cash-
generating units engaged in securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$3,628,905,000,
HK$7,148,237,000 and HK$219,541,000 respectively. For the
purposes of the goodwill impairment test, its recoverable
amount was determined based on a value in use calculation,
covering a detailed 4-year budget plan plus an extrapolated
cash flow projections applying a steady growth rate
subsequent to this 4-year plan, with a discount rate of
approximately 9.98%.

As at 31 March 2015, the recoverable amount for the cash-
generating units engaged in securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$7,783,000,000,
HK$14,911,000,000 and HK$335,000,000 respectively.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

(i) the annual growth rates of revenue were estimated
ranging from 7% to 16%, 7% to 8% and 7% to 8% for
securities services, margin and IPO financing and
corporate finance advisory services respectively
throughout the 4-year budget plan. Cash flow beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%).

(i)  that gross margins will be maintained at their current
levels throughout the 4-year budget plan.

The Group management’'s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’s development. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
businesses.

BREBHRR S BHEEEE  REERBEKX
NABEMEREAREET BEBMRS 2
ReEXEEN L HERRED A
3,628,905,0007% T * 7,148,237,0007% 7T &
219,541,000 It ° ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘é 2
HAaWEl B hiRERAEETE  REFS
AFHITEE TS SR 4 FH BB K

7?2 i‘ﬁtﬁ%ﬁziﬁiumgﬁz E'J HSEEZ'Z_
47/59.98% °

EA:: —hAF=ZA=1+—8 FRFEHX
CBEMRE RESERBEXAAZER
éﬁﬁﬁ‘%%&m%ﬁﬁk@ﬁHlﬁszﬁiﬁf“”
iz AUk B %85 Rl & 7,783,000,00078 7T
14,911,000,000 7% 7t & 335,000,000 /5 7T °

BETEMAEIERRAOT

() RAFHEETEIR  FHERE - RE
i&%//’(@ﬁﬂﬁ‘:ﬂﬂé%&ﬂé%ﬁﬁﬁ%
B RE 2 WS FRERGEH BN
F7%Z%E16% ~ 7% E8% N 7% ZE8% °
SERZIRERELBEERRI% HE
H(ZZE—H%F : 3%) °

(iy FEMERHR4FHRBEFSIN-—EH#
FIRBKF -

AEBEEE T EZBRRNDERBERAR
BHMSERMETE - TARIRE I ATLL
o WA RBRBEZEH 2HERR

SHUERMEMARAT ) - HAEER 121



Notes to the Financial Statements

S5 # R T

20

21

122

GOODW'LL (continued)

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the cash-generating units above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

No impairment loss is provided for the year ended 31 March
2015 (2014: nil). The Directors performed an impairment test
for the goodwill and concluded that the CGUs demonstrate
sufficient cashflow projections that justify the carrying value
of the goodwill. Management did not consider impairment of
goodwill necessary.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 BEw

B SO R S A W 2
BEZSN - A EEE SR T AR
HEPERT B2 UESD -

HE_T—RAF=A=+—RHLLFE HE
RREFLREBRER(ZT—OE:
B) BECETHERENS  BHER
RRTELEVRNENRERERAME
AN EAXKEHERAE EEERRBA
R EERE -

21 RBARIZKRE

The Company
RAF

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRRD - WK AE 11,585,466 11,585,466
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U Bt B~ R SRR 4,393,888 4,316,550
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE /S (1,513,019) (1,163,424)
14,466,335 14,738,592
Amount receivable within one year —FEREIERR (399,173) (399,168)
14,067,162 14,339,424

Amount receivable within one year is loan of HK$399,173,000
(2014: HK$399,168,000) to a subsidiary which was interest-
free and repayable within one year.

Apart from the above, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries
were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of
repayment. The amounts were non-current in nature.
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—F AR T A — R E AR FERE K
399,173,000/ 7L (—F— 04 : 399,168,000
BT c BRAERAE T ERER —FAE

Br Bt E SN - U FEATRT A B FRIA T
B R EREREERY - ZFKBEBI
BNEAMEE -
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21

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

REB AR 2RE @
TRESNEZEZEAREBESE  EENE

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of B2 BARFE - KRB ERBEEIN - FiiF
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless R (D 4B Rl /B L mA% o
otherwise stated.
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERL
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of registered/ Group’s Held by
registration and issued and paid up effective the Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company SEMEY EER 2/ CRTR & ADF  HKBAF  activities
ARER L BRREFE BiRER 558 BE TEER
Bebright Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
PABRAF EERTHE e REAZR
Futuremind Holdings British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRAHE IE REER
GR Casa Real Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$5 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBELEE 5%TT REER
GR Casa Real Company ~ Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Casa Real
Limited B 100,0002F9 7T Hotel
EXEBBEERDA KEEREBBIE
Glory State Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
B 1R REER
Golden Resorts Group Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Grandview
Hotel Investment Limited &9 100,0002F 7T Hotel
EEEEBERE KEBRIBE
BRAH
Goventure Finance British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino in
Limited * RBRZHE IE hotels
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RBRRIZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

BREEGRLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective by the Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company MR EER 2R/ ERIR x5E AQE  MEAR  activities
NEER REw BREBRAFE ERER =20 BE IEEH
Next Champion Limited British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RBRUES 1% REER
Golden 28 Club* Macau HK$10,000,000 80% - 80%  Operating casino in
BT BEEE" AP 10,000,000 7T hotels
RBIER LS
Target All Investments British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino in
Limited " RERIES 1% hotels
ERREBRAR" NEESEHES
Good Start Group Limited " British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino in
EBRAHE 1% hotels
RNEESEHES
Crystal Sea Group Limited * British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
ERRAHE e and operating
Golden Times Club*
in hotel
REERREE
BEFERR
EEE"
Noble Brand Limited* British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Trading of listed
EBRAHE 1% securities
BEELTES
Right Business Limited #  British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
BERRAR RBRAHE 100% 7T REER
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RHBRARIZIRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERERRLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective by the Held by a
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company MR EER 2R/ ERIR x5E A7E  KEAR  activities
AEER Kem BRBRAFE ERER 55 B8 TEER
Kingston Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000,000 100% - 100%  Dealing and advising
ENEEFBRAF Bk 2,000,000,000787¢ in securities
BEHR G R
fR s
Kingston Futures Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% - 100%  Dealing in futures
SNEMEBRAA Bt 15,000,000/ ¢ contracts
HERNRS
Kingston Corporate Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% = 100%  Provision of corporate
Finance Limited B 11,000,000/ 7T finance advisory
SR EHBERERAT services
HRfH b R P TSR
PR
Kingston Asset Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% = 100%  Provision of asset
Management Limited BB 5,000,000 7T management
SHEEEERERAR services
RREHEEERRY
Canada United Canada CAD50,000,100 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Potash Limited JIIEYN 50,000,100 A17T REER
# Company operates principally in Hong Kong instead of in their 5 FELBEBMIAEEZAMAE T KT

respective places of incorporation/establishment.

Company operates principally in Macau instead of in their

respective places of incorporation/establishment.

Golden 28 Club and Golden Times Club are registered in

Macau as an individual enterprise in the name of Mrs. Chu

Yuet Wah.

WAL EZ A

8 FTEERFIMHRELZEMAL KT
HEEE T A o

* B 28AEEERETHAEEE SREFT
UFEAEL L 2 EHZELBEARA >
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 REELE R
2015 2014
—g-EF -T-[mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Investment cost B 24 1,281
Capital injection AE - 5
Share of result of jointly-controlled entities  FE{5 L[R5 4| & fE 245 (23) (1,262)
Share of net assets B EEFE 1 24
Details of the joint ventures are as follows: BELRZFROT
Percentage
of ownership
interests/voting
rights/profit share
Form of Place of BEERR
business structure incorporation Principal activity — RZ#& /D557
Name &8 ERRBES A BR A it B TEEK Bt

Kingston/SBI Credence Limited* Limited liability company ~ Cayman Islands  Investment holding ~ 50%

BREMFAT HEHS REER
KINGSBI Investment Management  Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong Investment advisory  50%
Limited EREFERAFR B8 gV
Kingston/SBI Credence Fund, L.P.* Limited partnership Cayman Islands  Offshore fund 50%
BRER AT HEHS BEES
* Deregistered/dissolved during the year ended 31 March 2014. * BE_F-HF=A=1T—HILFEEH
SEEEM AL
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22 REELECER®

2015 2014
—B-RfF —T—MmEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Total assets BEMBE 2 50
Total liabilities BERHE - 2
Net assets BEFE 2 48
The Group’s share of net assets AEEEEEECREEFE
of joint ventures 1 24
Revenue U =5 - -
Other income E Uz A - 918
Administrative expenses TERR X (46) (3,447)
Loss before income tax BRETISTLATE 1 (46) (2,529)
Income tax FrisHi - 5
Loss after income tax BRETISTEE 1R (46) (2,524)
The Group'’s share of loss of joint ventures AN B fE( & & ¥ E1E (23) (1,262)
23 INVENTORIES 23 FE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Food and beverage and hotel B MR KB L& A
operating supplies 3,265 2,996
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24

25

128

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24 TEHHERE
2015 2014
“E-hF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Investment funds, at fair value REES  BRATE 930 1,387
The available-for-sale investments are denominated in United A EREAETFE @ ZIRELEAR
States dollars and there is no public market for the i °
investments.
The fair value is based on net asset value of the investment ARFEREERSHRRERR 2 BEFER
funds at the end of the reporting period. During the year H-BE_ZT—AF=—H=T—HLEFE"
ended 31 March 2015, a deficit arising on change in fair NV EE B E 4 B A £0229,000/8 T (ZF
value of approximately HK$229,000 (2014: HK$517,000) was —PO4 : 517,000%7T) - EREMEE A
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated R WRNIREEMHEERE -
in the investment revaluation reserve.
TRADING SECURITIES 25 RZBH
2015 2014
—B-AF —Z=-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZBRAES  EmE
at market value 38,644 48,692

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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26 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 26 NEFEARITHME

FINANCING
2015 2014
—Z-AfF —T—MEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT THET

Directors of subsidiaries and WEBARzEENEBE AL
their associates 26,320 119,719

Other margin clients HEMiRZBEEF 13,300,620 9,026,700
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt B REREE (12,647) (12,647)
13,314,293 9,133,772

AT BZERBERF G ZAEF RN RES

The movements in impairment loss on advances to customers

in margin financing, all assessed individually, are as follows: BEREBEE :
2015 2014
“E-HF —ZT-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At the beginning of the year F1 12,647 23,430
Impairment loss recognised ERERBEBE - 5,302
Impairment loss reversed BEREURERBE - (16,085)
At the end of the year FIR 12,647 12,647

AEFPENRIESREABEREE I K
B ERETHREBENEMIEE - 17?6;“\
BEPARASEEMESER M - ULE

RPEBEERE - BTRE Zﬁfvﬂéé

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable on
demand and carry interest at approximately Hong Kong
Dollar Prime rate plus 3%. Margin clients are required to
pledge securities collateral to the Group in order to obtain

credit facilities for securities trading. The amount of credit
facilities granted to them is determined by the discounted
value of securities accepted by the Group. At 31 March
2015, total market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loan to margin clients was approximately
HK$72,341,192,000 (2014: HK$46,030,036,000).

No aging analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
securities dealings and margin financing.

BRAEEEMNZESFMREEE - R
—RAFZA=+—8 ' EAIR: %%)Eﬁfrz%
EXEAERZEEBRZFEMEN A
72,341,192,000/% t( = T — I F:
46,030,036,00078 7T ) ©

%%?&ﬁ%ﬁ”“ 5&%&{% %ﬁ'ﬂﬁz%

P %Mﬂ%éﬁ@mﬂézﬁﬁﬁéﬁffﬁ
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27 BZREMEVRR

The Group The Company
rEH ¥ UNE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-FHEF —E—-MF —E-RF —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHT THET FHET
Trade receivables from financial K5 &RARIE D82
services segments B S EWERT 1,000,117 29,706 - =
Trade receivables from hotel and K B8 E RIEMH B2
gaming segments B 5 FEUBURX 84,098 125,555 - =
Other receivables, deposits and ~ EAbEWEEZ « 5]% K
prepayments B FIA 45,039 33,252 10,087 7,810
1,129,254 188,513 10,087 7,810

RE SRR D E 2B S BUARK

Trade receivables from financial services

segments
The Group
TEHE
2015 2014
—B-hfF —T—mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Accounts receivable arising from the BERHHEEBBIEEE L
ordinary course of business of FEULER X
dealing in securities:
Cash clients HeERP 286,554 10,964
Clearing House HEERT - 6,803
Brokers and dealers BERRFE 28 29
Client for subscription of new shares RIEBBRAARBEERND 2B
in IPO 699,470 -
Accounts receivable arising from the BEEHEANARERBEEEZ
ordinary course of business of FEUER X
dealing in futures contracts:
Clearing house EERT 7,875 10,184
Accounts receivable arising from the REUTSIEHBEBBIEEE 2
ordinary course of business FEWBR R
of provision of:
Corporate finance advisory services 1 2 B 75 L Pl AR 75 6,190 1,726
1,000,117 29,706
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coninies) 27 B S R HMEUWERF @)

Trade receivables from financial services
segments (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts receivable attributable to
dealing in securities are one or two days after trade date,
and those of accounts receivable attributable to dealing in
futures are one day after the trade date. All accounts
receivable from cash clients are not past due at the reporting
dates for which the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers, dealers
and corporate finance clients are current.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
receivable in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly monitored by management.

Accounts receivable from clients arising from financing of
IPO subscriptions are required to settle their securities
trading balances on the allotment date determined under the
relevant market practices or exchange rules. As at 31 March
2015, the outstanding balances of HK$699,470,000 will be
settled at early April 2015.

REEHBED B 2ESEVRERK
(%)
EHFRXHRERBIRHANR 5 AR —X
MERER - IEBHERGEERRRIZA
RRZBEHR—BAREN -FIBEREEFZ
BRI E A Y mal - E%ER
F BREEERYEBEAEE  AAWE
BRDBAR R 22U E - B AR AR
FHERME R -

=

EWEEM 842 ROIPREERERF
ZERRBENEME -

AEEREFPRAXHRE - AEETNE
REEH H AR EERYIRN - BB EERE
BREEHE - BEEEEHERAREER -

REALHEEREETEREMEMELEZ
FEW R FFIEANRIERBETISEN RS
FriRlEE s RERBEERARIGES -
MN-_BE-—RAF=A=+—8 A &&
699,470,000 TR =T — A F MW A ¥4
fif o
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coninued) 27 B 5 K HMEWERT o)

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming REBEERBESE2E S EWEE
segments ™
The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 REB —RETEEIIVAZFEHEEL -
days to its customers. The following is an aging analysis of UTNEBSREWERNREISR R ZERE D
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period: -
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
0-30 days 0Z230H 56,337 95,325
31-60 days 312 60H 16,023 25,527
61-90 days 61290 H 9,285 1,519
Over 90 days 90 H A E 25,837 26,568
107,482 148,939
Allowance for doubtful debt REREBAE (23,384) (23,384)
84,098 125,555
The movements of impairment loss on trade receivables of BEMEE DR ESRWEFRERIEZ
the hotel and gaming segments are as follows: FEmT
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—B-AHF —ZTmEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
At beginning of the year REL]) 23,384 23,384
Impairment loss reversed BB BRI E RS - -
At end of the year REFLL 23,384 23,384

132 Kingston Financial Group Limited / Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements

A B ¥ R M

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (oninues) 27 EZ R EMEWERR @

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments (continued)

REBEERBEIEZESERR

LG

The Group
AEH
2015 2014
—B-AF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Neither past due nor impaired P 48 180 B SR (B 56,337 95,325
Past due but not impaired: 22 HA{E AR E -

Less than 1 month past due wELR1 @A 16,023 25,527
1 to 3 months past due BwEI1 =3 @8 11,738 4,703
27,761 30,230
84,098 125,555

The balances which are past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers who have a good track record with the
Group, or are active during the year.

The balances of other classes within trade and other
receivables of the Group and of the Company are neither
past due nor impaired. They comprise other receivables
which are currently aged, and receivables from related
companies and group companies which are active during
the year. Management considers that these related parties
have sufficient financial capacities to repay.

The balances of other classes within trade and other
receivables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired.
Management considers that the credit risk associated with
these receivables is minimal.

ERHEERECEHRELREREEAR
RSN TR TP B -

RAKERARF 285 REMRUERRA
Z EAIE R SRR SORE - RF R
BREAMAEEKENR - URKBFAFE
BEBEECRERRREEKERRZE
WERR - BERERR  ZFHESFRPY
BEENEETIA

AEBZE S REMBYKIERRT - EIER
ZRERY EBHSORE - EEERR  ZF
FEY R 2 B EERBREBE
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28

29

134

CASH AND BANK BALANCES HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its
normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as cash and bank balances held on behalf of
customers under the current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding accounts payable (note 31) to respective
clients on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash held on behalf
of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

28 REFHAZAESRRBITES

AEERRBAEBRRIBIULERRP - UF
ERN-—REGEETELZEFHE - AK
B FEFRED BREAMBRART
RBEERTREFPRHEZRE RIRITHE
B WRBRE B P IR Z EA R K
Aa EREZER - BRARZ ENARK (K
i3  KEPHAZHEXBHF MPER
FIR TR LRRE (BPRIR) R AR &
HE -

29 RERREFEHER

The Group The Company
REE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-h8% —FT-mF —E-hF —FT-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHT FTHEx FHET
Time deposits a-lVES 43,953 58,188 - 18,163
Cash at bank and in hand BITRFHERE 1,728,279 152,673 811,186 17,751
Cash and cash equivalents in REATBRREZZ
the consolidated statement BehIREEMBEEE
of financial position 1,772,232 210,861 811,186 35,914
Cash at banks and cash held in a securities account RITHEMRBHF LA ZESRERFARNZ

maintained in a securities company earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term deposits
during the year are made for varying period of between 1
day and 3 months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at respective
short term time deposits rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalent approximate their fair value.
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30

INTANGIBLE ASSETS/INTANGIBLE
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

30 BEEE BELHEEFEE

Intangible assets BREE
HK$°000
Cost P AR FET
At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 RZE—=FMA—HK
—E-NF=A=+—H -
Transferred from intangible assets held for sales & HiS{E L EETL EE 322,685
Amortisation o (14,132)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-HF=H=+—H 308,553

The intangible assets represented the costs of the 15
subsurface mineral permits acquired as part of the settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with the borrower of
a loan receivable. The settlement was completed on 7 June
2013 (the “Closing Date”).

The permits were granted by the Saskatchewan Ministry of
Energy and Resources, currently known as the Ministry of the
Economy of Saskatchewan, in 2008 to prospect for
subsurface minerals in mining Elk Point, Saskatchewan,
Canada with area of approximately 3,989.95 square
kilometers.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the borrower shall
have the right to purchase all the permits by unilateral written
notice to the Group at an exercise price of CAD82,000,000
net of any liability within 180 days from the Closing Date. The
right lapsed on 5 December 2013.

As at 31 March 2014, the permits were presented as
intangible assets held for sale following the intention of the
Group’s management to dispose of these permits.

As at 31 March 2015, since the permits have been presented
as intangible assets held for sales for more than one year
and no sale has been concluded yet, the permits were
reclassified from intangible assets held for sales to intangible
assets.

The intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 24 years.

BB ERFRERUE R E R AR LA
R ek ([ AR %% 1) — B0 0 PR EUS 1510 b
THRESRAAIEIRAN - MR _—_F—=
FARNAEB(TELEBHDZEX -

T 2T IR BUR A A IR B2 B IR 30 (3R 78 & HT R A
BALES) R N\FREFUTE - N
R MERERRBUESE Ek Point &
#93,989.95 5 N B Z i NREE ©

RIBETER B - (B A B RS B 1L A BEE
18S0BRNEFTHRAAEEE L EmMBA - &
771% {&82,000,000 M1 7T (0B E ] & &) B
BETAFAZ - ERENN T —=F1+=
AREBR -

R-ZT-MOF=A=+—8 #AEEERE
BRTEBEHEZSHARR  AWTA&E
2N ERHIEHEBRTLEE -

R-ZF—AF=A=1+—H BHRFAER
JIRFHELERVEED BB —F  BX K
EREMHE B ERBERERTE
EEHFDBLELEE

BV EERBEMREER LGB EH24
FREH -
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136

INTANGIBLE ASSETS/INTANGIBLE
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Intangible Assets Held for Sale

In accordance with HKFRS 5 the intangible assets held for
sale have been written down to their fair value less costs to
sell of HK$322,685,000 as at 31 March 2014. This is a non-
recurring fair value measurement.

An impairment loss of HK$74,741,000 has been recognised
for the year end 31 March 2014 on the measurement of the
intangible assets held for sale to fair value less costs to sell,
mainly due to decline in mineral price.

The valuations of intangible assets held for sale were carried
out by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer who
holds recognised and relevant professional qualifications
and has recent experience in the location and category of
the intangible assets held for sale being valued.

The fair value less costs to sell of the intangible assets held
for sale as at 31 March 2014 was measured using in-situ
resource method under the market-based approach. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the intangible assets held for sale were based on the
independent professional valuer’s best estimate.

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

Expected ore tonnage (million tonnes) 4,906-7,520
Mining and processing recovery 55%-85%
Total discount on the price multiple 40%

The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
expected ore tonnage, and mining and processing recovery
while it is negatively correlated to total discount on the price
multiple.
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30 BMILEE HEHERFEEW

RELERTEE
REEEHBRELAEST  HEREE
FAEEMAEAR -_B-—NF=A=+—
H Z 2B &R A 322,685,000 & 7T
WG RN TFEAE -

BE_Z-—NF=A=+—HIFE - &
EREHEEREEZ AFER T ER AR
DERREEE 74,741,000 TERA
BIEEES N -

FEL SRV EEZ MERBLGEMES
B EERARET  EFEERA RIAH
BERER  UHAGHERELEEVEEZ
Mo MR BB T B ELR -

R-Z-—ME=A=+—8 HELEET
BEZNFHEROEKRATRATISER 2
REREFE - FHERELHERVEER
FEMAZEHEBRGABILEREER 2
REMET AR o

FTRATEZERTABERGABENT

TERTR AWML (B &ENE) 4,906 &£ 7,520
BEHE & A0 T [ 4 = 55% % 85%
BIRESZBITE 40%

N HERT B R IEFHE A BRI R EREE Mo T
ElUek 2 FELRER - MEERE R AR
A2 REBIER -
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30

31

INTANGIBLE ASSETS/INTANGIBLE
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Intangible Assets Held for Sale (continued)

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the
expected ore tonnage by 1% would have affect the Group’s
profit by increase/decrease HK$3,220,000.

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the mining
and processing recovery by 1% would increase the Group’s
profit by HK$9,720,000/decrease by HK$9,580,000
respectively.

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the total
discount on the price multiple by 1% would have affect the
Group’s profit by decrease/increase HK$5,370,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the
year.

30 BEREE BEHEEFEEE®

BIELHEEBFEE @
N-ZE—WE=A=+—08 ' B HEMM
BB FEERAREAIE N, R A 1%
ANEE R A, R 3,220,00078 7T ©

R-ZE—mWE=A=1+—08 ' LB EM
YA HBRMIEREREFHIE
1% A& B m A 1§ 9 Bl 1 409,720,000 75
7T/ 84> 9,580,000/ T °

R-ZT—NFE=A=+—H - HstFraEM
BUTE  BEREHZ BRI TR
1% » AEERE TR, 105,370,000 7%

JC °

FAGERMALEELS -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31 B2 RHEMENERER
The Group The Company
PN | ¥ /NE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F —T—MF —E-1F —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET TET TERT THT
Trade payables from financial RESBREHE L
services segments B SEMNER 1,737,117 1,760,004 - =
Trade payables from hotel and K EBEE REYHE L
gaming segments 2 SRR 13,628 30,053 - =
Other payable and accruals H i B BR FU R
&R 80,898 73,017 2,164 2,562
1,831,643 1,863,074 2,164 2,562
SR EMERMARAT | R RAAEER 137
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
Trade payables from financial services

138

31 BEFRHEMEMERR @
RESRBRE D Bz E S EMNRK

segments
The Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-h8%F —T—NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHIT
Accounts payable arising from the BAHR BB HEBEBRIZ
ordinary course of business of EEZ RN
dealing in securities:
Cash clients BeEP 674,889 232,129
Margin clients REBEERF 1,003,326 1,509,127
1,678,215 1,741,256
Dividend payable to clients ENEFRE 51 -
Clearing house EERT 43,234 =
Accounts payable arising from the BEPEAHNATES AR
ordinary course of business of EEZERERK :
dealing in futures contracts:
Clients =E 14,299 16,763
Accounts payable arising from the R TRIBEE EEKIBRE
ordinary course of business of BEEZENERK :
provision of:
Corporate finance advisory services 1> 2 B A R S AR 7% 108 46
Assets management services BEEIERK 1,210 1,939
1,737,117 1,760,004
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31 ESREMESEKRR@®

Trade payables from financial services
segments (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts payable attributable to
dealing in securities are one or two days after the trade date,
and those of accounts payable attributable to dealing in
futures are one day after trade date.

No aging analysis is disclosed for payables to margin clients
as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging analysis is not
meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealings and margin financing.

As at the 31 March 2015, included in accounts payable was
an amount of HK$1,207,184,000 (2014: HK$1,651,393,000)
payable to clients and other institutions in respect of trust
and segregated bank balances received and held for clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of
regulated activities.

Trade payables from hotel and gaming
segments

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:

RESHEH S B2E 5 EMNRK
(&)

BHR P EAEERRRARRZ S A% — R
BAMES  MASEERGERRBRR
HA%—BREN -

EEZRR ERNEFRIMRBEBEZE
BHE RO MALEER  RABRES
HARNRESEPRIAZRE DN

R-_ZE—RF=ZA=1+—H ENERERE
FES = P I B A i 15 BR 5% 1,207,184,000 78
TT(—ZF—PU4 : 1,651,393,00087C) * &
MR ETTRREEEBREFRE S R
BUWER NI B 2 EE B RITHERR ©

REBERBEIBEZEZENRKR
EN
AT REZREMNERNRERRZERRD
i

The Group
AEH

2015 2014
—ZF-1F —TMF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THIT
0-30 days 0% 30H 8,361 14,158
31-60 days 31%60H 1,692 13,159
61-90 days 61290 H 1,842 1,440
Over 90 days 90 B M k 1,733 1,296
13,628 30,053
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32 AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

140

32 BARRRE

The Group AEE
2015 2014
—E—AfF —ET—OF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fft et THET ST
Active Dynamic Limited Active Dynamic Limited (a) - 147,111
Better Sino Limited EBEARRAA (a) 1,190,000 1,190,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELZ+ (b) 1,230,911 1,510,000
2,420,911 2,847,111

The Company AT
2015 2014
—F-I1% —TmF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ftat FET THETT
Better Sino Limited EFERAA (a) 900,000 900,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FHELZL (b) 1,230,911 1,510,000
2,130,911 2,410,000
(a) The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and (a) BEARBEATTE EEBLERE

repayable on demand. SKIEE o

The loan of HK$1,010,000,000 (2014:
HK$1,010,000,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at
the rate of 2% per annum and repayable on the third
anniversary of drawdown (i.e. on or before 30 March
2017). This loan is subject to review at anytime and to
the lender’s overriding right of withdrawal and
immediate repayment on demand. The remaining
balance of HK$220,911,000 (2014: HK$500,000,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 3% and
repayable on demand.
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33 LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

34

The loan is due to Kingston Finance Limited which has

33 RE—XBEELTAER

ERDENENEMEARARNEA %A

common directors and shareholders with the Group. The loan FEAEEEHRESLIKRE - EEER A
is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 1.5% per annum I IREFER1S5EFBERABAEERE
and repayable on demand. 8o
SUBORDINATED LOANS 34 BEEX
Draw date Terms 2015 2014
$ZEL A & 1R X —E-hF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Loan from Mr. Lee Wai Man 30 Jan 2004 P+1% 250,000 250,000
REFTENEEZER —TRPUF BEERE
—A=+8H b1 E
20 Feb 2004 1.5% 150,000 150,000
ZETPF 152
—H=+H
Revolving loan from 24 May 2010 1.5% 300,000 300,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah —E—FF 158
KREZFAZEZT ZRERER HAAZ+MA
700,000 700,000
The subordinated loans of the Group are interest bearing, REEHEBERATE ®BEBLARE
unsecured and repayable on demand. SKIEE
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35 BANK LOANS

35 MITER

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-HF —E-NE —F-HF _—T-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FHTT THET T
Secured bank loans: BIEIFRITER
Money market loans and HEEMSER R
revolving loans BIREX (a) 2,864,500 1,324,000 - -
Term loans EHIER (b) 1,500,000 - 800,000 -
4,364,500 1,324,000 800,000 -
Repayable: JZARLA TN HAR AEER -
Within one year —F R 2,954,500 1,324,000 48,000 -
more than one year, but —FRETHB
not exceeding two years 4 90,000 - 48,000 =
more than two years, but GEXCIERS G
not exceeding five years HF 270,000 - 144,000 -
after five years hFE 1,050,000 = 560,000 =
4,364,500 1,324,000 800,000 -
Amount within one year SFARBAEEZ
included in current —FEAFIE
liabilities (2,954,500) (1,324,000) (48,000) -
Amount due after one year —F1& BT FIH 1,410,000 - 752,000 -
(a) The bank loans were secured by marketable securities (a) MITERDARBEEFLEBTAE

of HK$12,324,655,000 (2014: HK$7,465,202,000)
pledged to the Group by margin clients. The bank
loans bear floating interest rates ranging from 0.8% to
1.53% per annum (2014: 0.8% to 1.09%).
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35 BANK LOANS (continued) 35 ﬁﬁ‘?i-g%kU%)

(o) The term loans of HK$1,500,000,000 (2014: nil),
bearing floating interest rates ranging from 2.68% to
2.69% per annum (2014: nil) were secured by:

— the pledge of leasehold land and buildings held for
own use with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$2,970,000,000 (2014: nil);

—  shares of a subsidiary;

—  corporate guarantee from a subsidiary;

— a charge over operating bank accounts of two
subsidiaries;

— assignment of income and receivables arising
from commercial operations of two subsidiaries.

36 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employee are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 up to 31 May 2014 and
HK$30,000 from 1 June 2014 onwards. Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau were
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Group was required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme was to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

(b) F H3 B 7 1,500,000,000/ (= =
—VOF : &) IRN T 268EE269E
FEFERER(ZTE—OF  E)FE
AT S IBEELR

— KB BERM (A 4 4 2,970,000,000
B (ZE—F : #\)EHEEA
ZHETHRESF

— —FMBARZRY

— KA—ZRWBARZABER

— WRMEBAREERITESA
=X

— BRELEMXMBAREERE
B2 WA K EMGRIR

36 EERAKER

REEBREFBRHIEARESEEN AR
BB ERBENZEZEI2EBFIMAES
FrEl((afEestEll) - wES st El AT M
SRRETE] - ABUEEATRE - RiERTE
i3 BERHEEESAAREERBUK
A5%AEFSIELR R S ABFBKA L
RR-—ZE -4 A A=+—HEHIA25,000
B mME 2 —UE A — B ERAA
30,0008 7T ° MFFEIfEDR 2 R B HE o

AEENE TR AR < &89 ARFIER
FEEZBRERRARBENE 228E -
AEBRREMNHEZ2ET A LLAERK
BT EI R - AEBE LA R RERIGH S
ZME—BERREZTEELHER
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144

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
August 2013, shareholders of the Company have adopted a
new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the total numbers of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares of the
Company in issue on the date of adoption. The Company
may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that such renewal may not exceed 10% of the
shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options to be granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company should not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue.
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BARITEBRE MRIEA R R RA 2 E[E
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EREBEETRR A TRITZ AR RN AE
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37 URGAERIF2RI @

(continued)

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. The exercise of options may also be subject to
any conditions imposed by the Company at the time of offer.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company
on the date of grant. The subscription price will be approved
by the board of directors at the time the option is offered to
the participants.

For the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company
had no share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or
cancelled pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

PR AT 2 HIR A AR A BRI H B
FETE o A HIRMARE B RE B H#EE 10
FAEM - TEBRETAEZRRARQR]
RIR2 BRI E Z AR -

REBERE TR K T RITZ AR BB R
BETFSERNATESE : () AR ARHR
B AHEB AT 28 A RERMRK
ME () ARBROVEREF L B A5 A (E
LEAEBEYARIAERAATEZE
BmERMARFHWRTIE - R (i) AR FR
RELAHHZEE RBEFAREERN
SEERRBIRIERRAE

BE-F-AFR-FT-ME=A=+—A
IR AD R R A AR A BT R
o MARATEE - B 2 BRE -
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38 DEFERRED TAXATION
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year are as follows:

146

38 IRLEBIH

Accelerated

FR - REARMBHRRNRER ZBRERAE
E/(BfEERSs REESHMT

tax Other Unused
depreciation assets tax losses Total
i RBA
BEANE HitEE BIEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT FHAT FHT
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FmMA—H 8 (158,670) 6,104 (152,563)
Charge to other B H i 2 R AR
comprehensive income - (66,098) - (66,098)
Credit to consolidated FFAGARERER
income statement - 4,262 - 4,262
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H 8 (220,506) 6,104 (214,399)
Charge to other B H 2 ERANR
comprehensive income - (89,111) - (89,111)
Credit to consolidated FAGZERBRER
income statement - 6,080 - 6,080
At 31 March 2015 R-—ZE—RF=RA=+—H 3 (303,537) 6,104 (297,430)
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38 DEFERRED TAXATION (continueq) 38 EEBIIE =)
At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of R-ZZE—RF=A=+—H AEERHAE
approximately HK$169,629,000 (2014: HK$338,843,000) A R R AT kBB R EE B
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset #) £169,629,000/ ;o( — & — Mg & :
has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2015 in 338,843,000/ L) BHE =T —HF=H
respect of HK$50,867,000 (2014: HK$50,867,000) of such =St+—RALEFE EXRBREEEAEH
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect 50,867,000 jT (== — 4 £ : 50,867,000
of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of BT IR ERIEE E - ERNEATE AR
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be AR AOR - B E e TN TR ES B R
carried forward for a period of: FERRIAEE - RERTIIAEIE N T3 H
B
2015 2014
—E-0F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THT
One year —&2 - 29,321
More than one year but —F LA BT BB E
not more than two years - =
More than two years but ME BT ER=F
not more than three years - -
Indefinitely PR HA 118,762 258,655
118,762 287,976
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SHARE CAPITAL 39 KA
2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—mF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
REE &8 rrE ¢! -]
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 BREE0.02% T
2 TR
Authorised: EERA :
At 1 April 2014/2013 and R-T—mE,/
31 March 2015/2014 —E-=f£0A—A
k=Z—0%F/
- S fS
=A=+—H 24,750,000,000 495,000 24,750,000,000 495,000
Issued and fully paid: BB RERRA
At 1 April 2014/2013 and R-T—mE/
31 March 2015/2014 —E-=f£0A—H
E=ZT—RE/
—E-mEF
=A=+—H 12,114,480,666 242,290 12,114,480,666 242,290
Non-redeemable convertible G EEE
preference shares BE: -
Shares of HK$0.02 each B mEE0.02 BT
s <)
Authorised, issued and ETE - BETR
fully paid: BRI -
At 1 April 2014/2013 and R-ZE—meE/
31 March 2015/2014 —T-=FmAH—H
kZZT—REF/
—T—mF
=A=+—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000
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39 SHARE CAP'TAL (continued)

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
The fair value assessment of the convertible preference
shares (“CPS”) was carried out by AA Property Services
Limited, an independent professional valuer. The basis for
determining the fair value of CPS at HK$2,395,106,000 at the
date of completion is as follows:

The fair value of the CPS is estimated by using Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model.

Risk Free Rate: The CPS are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. The risk free rate is determined by making reference
to the Exchange Fund Notes of comparable terms issued by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Terms and Conditions: The face value and coupon of the
CPS and other relevant terms and conditions are considered.

Conversion Options Calculation: (i) Stock Price = HK$1.05;
(ii) Exercise Price = HK$0.8; (iii) Risk Free Rate = 2.732%; (iv)
Expected Option Period = 10.005 Years; (v) Expected
Volatility = 87.825%; (vi) Option Type = Call; (vii) Expected
Dividend Yield = 0%.

On 27 April 2015, 1,500,000,000 shares were converted to
ordinary shares with an exercise price of HK$0.8 per share
as disclosed in note 47(i).

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of subordinated
loans, loan from a related company, amounts due to
shareholders, bank loans, promissory notes and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
paid up capital/share capital and reserves. The directors of
the Group review the capital structure regularly. As part of
this review, the director considers the cost and the risks
associated with each class of the capital.

39

SHUERMEMARAT ) - HAEER

PR 2N )

] B [ A R B AR

ARG S B ([T I B 2o % | ) 2 A FERT
ERB L BEEEMREYEBEREREA
T 1T o B 5 5 82,395,106,000 3% 7 2 A
BRELERRTERE B 2 AFEZEED
T

ABMBEER e AFEIVERM AR — &F
BT E BRI AET o

RN X ARRE ST A TTRHE ©
ERBNXD2EAEECHEERELY
BEAARLBERZIMNEESESMETE -

TR B A BRT RATRRE SRR 2 mE R
SR LA K E A A B GRSR B AR A -

ARSI E L - () IRE =1.068 7T ¢ (i)
178 B=08% st (i)E A B F R=
2.732% : (iv) TEEAEAREF B = 10.005F : (v)
Y8 HAR 08 = 87.825% : (vi) HARESE R = 3288
(vii) B B B2 =0% ©

AN 47T E R —RAFWMA
—+-+ 8 1,500,000,000 M& i% 15 =217 B
FR08B TR AT -

EXERE
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital Management (continued)

Based on the recommendation of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Net debts include amounts due to shareholders,
loan from a related company, bank loans and subordinated
loans, less cash and bank balances — general accounts.
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

39 B )

EREE @
AEFeREEE2HESR  BRRME
B BT REBETHEEXERREE
%o M EEAEBEEERERE -

AEBRAAERBLE (DEHFERA
DA AR EE) BREAK - B
FEEEMBRNE  RE—RMELH
ZER  BAERREEETONRS RIEIT
ek — —RERF - RBMEPRRCEERRE
i% SunE

2015 2014

—Z-1F ZTMF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHER FAT

Net debts B FE 11,151,144 7,612,889
Total equity attributable to owners RREHEE NEIEEREE

of the Company 17,534,208 15,881,791

Gearing ratio BEAGEEE 0.64 0.48

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC.
Under the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of statutory floor
requirement or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever
is higher. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
regular basis and the Group has complied with those
requirements during the year.
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40 RESERVES 40 f#1E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements NEBRAREER F—FEZRFHESRELE
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the FHE R ERREMBE G EREH
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64 of REF -

the financial statements.

Share Capital
premium Contributed redemption Retained
Company account surplus reserve earnings Total
EXERE
AN ROVEEE — AREEH% ®E  REEF Mzt

HK§000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000  HKE000  HK$'000
TR TAT TRT TAT TAT

At 1 April 2013 RZZ—=FmA—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 278,195 12,087,973
Profit for the year FNEF - - - 111,504 111,504
Payment of dividends IETRRE = = = (173,645)  (173,645)
At 31 March 2014 RZZT—mF

—B=+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 216,054 12,025,832
Profit for the year FREH - - - 241,868 241,868
Payment of dividends RIS - - - (260,467)  (260,467)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—AF

—A=1+—"H 11,739,980 69,332 466 197,455 12,007,233
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40 R ESE RVES (continued)

152

(a)

The share premium account represents the excess of
proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that (i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

The reserve available for distribution by the Company to the
shareholders as at 31 March 2015 is approximately
HK$266,787,000 (2014: HK$285,386,000).
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41 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND M BEEEHEEHESHAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of financial instruments THREVNAFEEZ ST A - ARSIHIT
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements RS E TP N B R 2 FEIS o

and similar agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting
UFEEZERER
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

BERGANBRRZEH
ZEBEE
Gross amount Net amount
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities offset presented
in the in the
Grossamount  consolidated  consolidated Financial
of recognised  statement of statement  instruments Cash
financial financial of financial other than collateral
assets position position cash collateral received Net amount
oty W&
BEMRRR  BEMRR  REHEAR
BEZSH BHERR EYPAx | Wiz ghBe
BEAE CSRAELT EERE SRIA EH R BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T TEL T THL THEL
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-H%
=RA=1-H
Type of financial assets SREERR
Trade receivable REBELE L
from HKSCC B RN 699,213 (699,213) - - - -
At 31 March 2014 it l1f:3
=ZA=t-H
Type of financial assets EREAER
Trade receivable REBELEE Y
from HKSCC B HRIERR 160,083 (153,280) 6,803 - - 6,803
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OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 41 EiETHEEHESHMEEw
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting
TFEHzeRMaE
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

BERGEUBRRREH
SR
Gross amount  Netamount
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets offset presented
in the in the
Gross amount  consolidated  consolidated Financial
of recognised statement statement  instruments Cash
financial of financial of financial other than collateral
liabilities position position  cash collateral received Net amount

R&& R&E&
BERRR  MERRX  ReEAR

ERIEH HEHERR EY Pk Wiz EhHRE
BEME SREELE 8EFE $RIE R k|
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TEL AL TEL THL TET
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-1%F
=R=1+-AH
Type of financial liabilties SHARER
Trade payable REEBEEZ
from HKSCC L5 RERNESR 742,047 (699,213) 43,234 - - 43,234
At31 March 2014 RZZ—ME
=B=t—-H
Type of financial liabilities SRAERA
Trade payable REBRLEE
from HKSCC B SRR 153,280 (153,280) - - - B
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41 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
The tables below reconcile the amounts of trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables as presented in
the statement of financial position:

M BETHEERSHMER®

TRERVHIRAKRAZINE 5 M EAMRER
RRRELE 5 R H A R AR 185

2015 2014
= —T-mF
Trade and other receivables HK$°000 HK$'000
B R HEMEWIRR FET FET
Net amount of trade receivables REBBEECE
from HKSCC FEUBR FUF 58 - 6,803
Trade and other receivables not NERE IR EEE
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 K& H b IR AR IR 1,129,254 181,710
Trade and other receivables as RE MR RATIREE 2
disclosed in the consolidated statement 2 5 K&k H b fEURBR X
of financial position 1,129,254 188,513
2015 2014
—E-hf%F —T—EF
Trade and other payables HK$’000 HK$'000
EZREMEMSIRR FET FET
Net amount of trade payable REBBEEZES
from HKSCC FERTBRZUF K8 43,234 =
Trade and other payable not in the TEHRHKESHE 2
scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 N EMEMERR 1,788,409 1,863,074
Trade and other payable as disclosed A ISR RFTH R 2
in the consolidated statement of B 5N EMEIRK
financial position 1,831,643 1,863,074
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 B EMRERE

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €I EER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the RBEBH AEBRARASHES
Group and the Company's financial assets and MEENMBEZREELT :
liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:
The Group The Company
by -] YN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-1% —E-mE —2-1f “T-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAL TERT THET
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale investments MHEHERE 930 1,387 - -
At fair value through profit or loss BATE; A ER
— Held-for-trading investments —REBERE 38,644 48692 - -
Loans and receivables ER R YR
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — BB A RFUE - - 4,393,888 4,316,550
— Advances to customers in —ARPRIRESRHE
margin financing 13,314,293 9,133,772 - -
— Financial assets included in — AR S RE MR
trade and other receivables JEREE 1,106,171 169,937 15 88
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekHeEEEE 2,979,416 1,862,254 811,186 35,914
17,399,880 11,165,963 5,205,089 4,352,552
17,439,454 11,216,042 5,205,089 4,352,552
Financial liabilities eRERE
Financial liabllities measured at REENAGTECEBAR
amortised cost
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — ERIBARZIA - - 1,513,019 1,163,424
— Financial liabilities included in — St AE S REEMRR
trade and other payables JERaE 1,781,625 1,805,702 - =
— Amounts due to shareholders — EfikEE 2,420,911 2,847,111 2,130,911 2,410,000
— Loan from a related company —RE—ZXBERFER 5,437,965 2,952,639 - =
— Subordinated loans —REER 700,000 700,000 - =
— Bank loans — RTER 4,364,500 1324000 - -
14,705,001 9,629,452 3,643,930 3,573,424
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk.

(M)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Australian Dollars (“AUD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), United States Dollars (“USD”),
and Singapore Dollars (“SGD”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated financial assets and

42 BIEEBEREw
(b) BERABREEBEEREE

AREB 2 XA ZHEMBRER - ™
SRR (BREELRR - FREERRE
wER) EERRNRBEZER

(i) ™EER
[E S R
AEEAZZRBATREEMmE
EZERRR TEFRAT
(MR ARBTARED -
ST ([3£7T)) R hnsse e ([ %0
BITl) o BB EEK B RKEE
RHMEEREERARE -

RiE B8 ARELINESHE
ZEMEERBBEZREEN

liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: T
Liabilities Assets
=N BE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-FHF —ET-NWF ZZEB-HFE —ZT—NUF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T FET FET
AUD BIT - 24 57 66
usD e 14 14 1,551 1,445
RMB AR 1,255 2,083 26,114 18,010
SGD ¥ AN T 112 165 640 534

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD
and the net effects of AUD and SGD are low. The
Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.

ANER B B A NS SRR o
Am- BEESERENER -
YRAREREEBENEAER
[ o

AEEBHETH BT ERH
EAEREXRE - MR IT K0
WL 2 HR EEN - AEEIRE
ITEARARERBCTE -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

158

U

ISR E R e
(b) BIEREEEERBE®@)

Market risk (continued) (i) ™WEREGE
Foreign exchange risk (continued) & 7 J7 B (48)
The following table indicates the approximately TRINSFAFEREE 2B K&
change in the group'’s profit and loss for the year EIEEEXRSIER REEE (ARE
in response to reasonably possible changes in ERAREFHASEARR) M
the foreign exchange rates to which the group BEEZHHES -
has significant exposure at the reporting date.
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange after tax exchange after tax
rates for the year rates  for the year
FRBRBE FARRBIZ
ExEH - BREHNS EXEAS &M
(T F%) OR2) (TB&) ORA)
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
% FET % FHT
Renminbi ARE 3% 746 3% 478
-3% (746) -3% (478)
It is assumed that the change in foreign exchange ERXEXRFEHNREHRE

rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. It is also assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 31
March 2014.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

U

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily from its borrowings, bank deposits and
loan receivables. Borrowings and bank deposits
at variable rates and loan receivables at fixed
rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
management monitors the Group’s exposure on
ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2014: 100
basis points) in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$100,690,000 (2014:
HK$66,416,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the company’s
exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 31 March
2014.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
equity investments held for trading purpose (note
25) and available-for-sale investment whose
returns are linked to a portfolio of securities listed
in Hong Kong and other major stock market in the
portfolio (note 24).

42 BiEEBEERE@
(b) HEEREEBERBE®

() TEERE@®
= 2
AEEzNERBRERHAEME
Fo |ROTEFRERERESE
T BAE R R ERIT I BUA R E B
WERSAEEBS HIAZRER
EFEER LA FEN KRR

5% [ 3 S PR P N R g HR SR L
EH M EER - EEERFERS
RAKEAR ZEAR -

R-ZE—RHE=A=+—08 M
FlkeEeE PR T 10052 (=
T—PU4E - 100 E2) c MATAH
S EFITE - S AER 2
BT 1% 5 F) R AR BB B R E hn, R
4>#7100,690,000;8 7T (—ZZE—Y
£ 1 66,416,000 7T) °

RS ST R R R E
BEMRTA - WEBARAR
ARZBHAZ 2RI AREY
FEEB: —T— MW= A
=+— Az HM A AL
17 -

B8

REEAS 2 ERRREARE
BEERR 2BARE (K E25)
RREHAPZAHKERE
(HEHERNEEREMEER
EmELTzESFKREAEGH
) (FfFE24) -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

U

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy
or sell trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual
securities, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.
Management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The available-for-sale
investment has been chosen based on their good
value and growth prospects and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 13% (2014: 2%) change in the equity prices
with all other variables held constant and based
on their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. For the available-for-sale
investment, the impact is deemed to be on the
investment revaluation reserve and no account is
given for factors such as impairment, which might
have impact on the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

EEREREw
(b) MERBREEEEREE®
() TEERE
1182z (48)
AKEBZ FMEEREBH AT

£ BASHEER B EFZR
ENREZRERRENESFRR
NEASERBESHEMIE
h- EREERFREHEATET
FEREEZRE  LEEEH
Rk - ARERBEREREYAE
FrEREEZRATRBETHLE
BRE YEHERKRRELET
EH -

TRABAEAA H M BT T
BZERT ﬁE%FHﬂ R4 R
RZEEEBERE  RELZEH13%
— P4 - 2%) ZHRKRE °
RAEHERENS  BEEF
WRABEIREEHEERERY
£ M EEEEMIRESA
REVEBEEKHMEHBERY
H= o

Increase/
decrease in Increase/
Increase/ net profit/loss decrease in
decrease in and retained other equity
basis points earnings reserves
R BR
E¥tA/ BFERRERF HoREHEE
T 2,/ Hd 8,/ Wb
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2015 —E-1f
Trading securities R B 13% 5,024 -
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 13% - 120
2014 —E-—ME
Trading securities RHEH 2% 977 =
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 2% = 28
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is
represented by the aggregate balance of cash at
bank, loan receivables, advances to customers in
margin financing and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Before granting loans and margin financing to
outsiders, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment process to assess the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by borrower. Limits attributed to borrowers are
reviewed by the management regularly. The
Group obtains collateral from borrower to
minimise the credit risk in respect of the loan
receivables.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Trade receivables from hotel and
gaming segments are due within 30 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of
the trade and other receivables and margin
financing, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate allowances are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Group consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

42 BiEEBEERE@
(b) HEEREEBERBE®

(i) FERE
AREEAZ 2 EERRIERITIR
T BWER  MEFBMNRE
TRVE DA NE 5 K H At e W BR K
iR  BEEECEREER
R BEEEEREERR -

ERHERRRESBE FIR
AL Z B AKEA—E R
£ T2 AP (5 5 BB R
2 EEEERASAERARE
EERE - BRANEEREAT
IR B R - AR B
S UL PN TR
ARSI (E FAR -

B S REMBERERME - A
SEEEECZE-ABM &
AETEEERSE BHREEUR
BITHMEZERERF  BEROMK
ClE H BRI ERETTE)  JBE
RBX DR B 5 BB ARTNE
S HHEARLFI0BE AR — &
mE > AEETEEREFEHR
5 -

REERKE SN HEMRIEIRZR
URRBEEBMEZEERR - &
SERBEHR RIS AI LD S
8 RO AIRE SR IEL
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

162

(i)

(iif)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of 31 March 2015, there is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to the
receivables, as no one customer is responsible
for more than 10% of the Group’s trade
receivables and margin financing. This was also
the case as at 31 March 2014.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
advances to customers in margin financing and
trade and other receivables are set out in notes
26 and 27, respectively.

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group’s activities are subject to
various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the Securities and Futures
Commission in accordance with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “HKSFO”).
The Group is closely monitored to the liquidity
gap to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid
capital to fund its business commitments and to
comply with the relevant Financial Resources
Rules under the HKSFO. As part of the measures
to safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained a
balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the uses of the shareholders’
loan, subordinated loan and banking facilities in
order to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long terms.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

42 BiEEBEERE@
(b) HEEREEBERBE®

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REBELRRE
The following table details the remaining TE%&IJZI&%I&$’AE3E@T$
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting SR B ERREH R ZFEE L
period of the Group and Company’s non- JEwER - TIRE S ’]*%Eﬁjﬁ{i}
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on TR BREERAASNTNERAE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (KM AZE AR REH R
interest payments computed using contractual EHMEGFE) ZF SR K
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current at RAARHERNRTZHZEH
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest HAESF -
date the company can be required to pay:
The Group REH
2015 2014
it 2E-|mE
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted ~ one year or Over Carying ~ undiscounted ~ one year or Over
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
SHRER -Ehg AR —Eng
REE ReRELE EZX - FEE Rensg EEX 2%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000
TERL TiEn Tin Tin Tin T Tin T
Trade and other payables 2SR A ERER 1,781,625 1,781,625 1,781,625 - 1,805,702 1805702 1,805,702 -
Amounts due to shareholders  EFTTREFUE 2420911 2,447,738 2,447,738 - 2847111 2,882,311 2,882,311 -
Loan from arelated company ~ RE-FEBRASH 5,437,965 5,519,534 5,519,534 - 2,952,639 2,996,929 2,996,929 -
Subordinated loans LR 700,000 721,750 721,750 - 700,000 721,750 721750 -
Bank loans HIER 4,364,500 4434792 2,982,914 1,451,878 1,324,000 1,336,519 1,335,519 -
1705001 14905439 13483561 1450878 969452 9742211 Q742011 -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

42 BiEREBER @
(b) HERBREEEEREE®

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii)y REESEE(E
The Company P/ NN
2015 014
ZE-1F ZI-RE
Total Total
contractual Within coniractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted ~ one year or Over Camyjing  undiscounted ~ one yearor Over
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
SHRER -Fpg aRER —FRg,
REE BeREsE EZ% #E-% FEE BRERBLE E2X e
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$ 000
TR TR TR TR TinL ThRL TR TR
Trade and other payables BARAMERES
including amounts due to BEERKE
subsigleries AIFE 1,513,019 1,513,019 1,513,019 - 1163424 1163424 1163424 -
Amounts due to shareholders — ERTRRZUR 2,130,911 2,157,738 2,157,738 - 2,410,000 2,445,200 2,445,200 -
Bank loans B8 800,000 822,517 48,182 714335 - - - -
4,443,930 4,493,274 3,718,939 14335 3573424 3608624 3608624 -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

— the fair values of held-for-trading investments with
standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with
reference of quoted market prices;

— the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
is based on net asset value of the investment fund
at the end of the reporting period;

— the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions
as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
company’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2015 and
31 March 2014 except amounts due from (to)
subsidiaries which are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it
is not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

42 BiEEBEERE@
(c) DAFEME
PRMEENESBHEBBEZAFENET
P EIHET ¢

—  MHEREGRR GRS B
BB EECRIEREEREZA
FED2EMRBTERRE

— FAHHESREEZAFEIIR
BRESHRZREESEEF
BEETE

— HiteRMEEREBRARIAYF
ENRAREBERN - AERA]
BRZBERMER B EBRILE
ZHABREREDMAEEE
5 o

EXERR N-TE—AF=A=1—
BR-ZZ-—WNF=A=+—H AR
Al ABE A AT B A R 1 AR 2 & Rt
BENRERAGBZERERAEAFE
BE - EZSFEER  2EREEE
BT Z U (1) B B8 & RIFRIERBR S ©
ERZEGRR BEEAFELES

o
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42

166

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments
HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value by level of the following
fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level2 — inputs other than quoted prices

included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the financial instruments
that are measured at fair value as at 31 March 2015
and 2014.

At 31 March 2015

42 BIEEBERE @
(d) £BMITEAFERE

BFEMBHRELNE7HRRE - ARF
EtEZ SR T ABR TN IIQFER
ERHIELEE

F—5

E 5

E=4R

HRAEEXAENERT
IHHRE CRERE) -

BEXRBATBRF —
BRREEAABRRES
MBABR - TREBEER
(BB ) B (BN4E (B
B OTE) BRGE -

ATEEESABNBAR
IR RN UBRE
By i5 8UR (B A B
ERINBAER)

TRIER - E—FRER T M4
ZA=+—HURFEFEZERT

H o
=

R-E-HEF=A=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—HA FEZHH E=5 @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR FTET FERT FERT
Assets BE

Held-for-trading securities BEEEES 38,644 - - 38,644

Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments - 930 - 930
38,644 930 - 39,574
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42 BEEEEE @

(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

At 31 March 2014

(d) €MIAEAFERR @

R-F-WFE=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1Al E=pt 41531 E=M7 fBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAHT FAT FHIT FHIT
Assets BE

Held-for-trading securities RIEEER 7 48,692 = - 48,692

Available-for-sale AHHERE
investments - 1,387 - 1,387
48,692 1,387 - 50,079

During the year, there are no significant transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2.
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43 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

(a)

168

The Group leases its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements, and the terms of the
leases range from one to ten years and the leases are
repayable in fixed monthly installments. The lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the respective
lease terms. There is no arrangement for contingent
rent payments.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

43 REHEERE
(@) AEERECLAHESTHAEL i
REF RBNFT—EZ+EFZE.
MeBATESBLN - BEBZET
REEARBERSEE - AEELE
BB ATS MR 2 o

R-TE—AF=A=+—H A&H
RAAHERKEHEE T 2 HRRER
RIEHESEEN T HFERE

2015 2014

—E—-HF —E—mF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET BT

Within one year —F R 10,565 10,198
After one year but within five years —FRERFR 36,353 36,441
After five years hF% 31,687 41,313
78,605 87,952

The Group entered into non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements with landlords and the terms of the
leases range from one to three years.

The lease payments recognised as expenses are as
follows:

(b) AKEEXTCIZAAIRERLEHE
B2 BN —FE=F1F-

R 2 MEFEWT ¢

2015 2014

—E-HEF —Z=—OF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FaxT FHIT

Minimum lease payments RIERERE 31,927 35,955
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43 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (continued) 43 A& FHERIE @)

(b)  (continued)

(b) &

At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future minimum R-E—FHAF=A=1+—H  A&£E
lease rent payables under non-cancellable operating RAAHELEEEE N 2 BB ER

leases falling due as follows:

RIEHESEBERN TIIHEZE :

2015 2014
—B-AF —=-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Within one year —FR 31,373 30,013
After one year but within five years —FRERAFA 55,708 438
87,081 30,451
44 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 44 EERIAEE
LIABILITIES
The Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-a% —F-WF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Capital commitments in respect of W R -« BENRE
acquisition of property, plant and B ARGEYE
equipment:
— contracted but not provided for — BETHE RN iR ER N
in the financial statements 1,085 -
— authorised but not contracted for — BEEBEERTA - -
1,085 =
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44

170

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LlABlLlTlES (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary Good Start Group Limited received a tax
notice issued by Macau Financial Services Bureau dated 29
April 2014 assessing its Macau Complementary Tax payable
for the year of assessment 2009 and 2010 to be
approximately HK$15,000,000 and HK$20,000,000
respectively. Good Start Group Limited lodged an objection
letter on 22 May 2014 to appeal against the notice according
to stipulated appeal procedures.

On 25 September 2014, the Committee of Financial Service
Bureau (the “Committee”) issued their final decision to reject
the Group’s appeal. The Group made the tax payment
according to stipulated regulation requirement before making
further appeal via court. On 9 December 2014, the Group
submitted initial petitions to the court for appeal and the
proceedings are currently in progress. As advised by local
tax consultant and lawyer, the directors considered that the
Group has valid grounds for the appeal and they believed
that the gaming revenue generated through Good Start
Group Limited’s Service Agreement with SJM is not subject
to Macau Complementary Tax since it is derived from SIM
gaming revenue, which gaming revenue is exempted
pursuant to Macau Law. Accordingly, no provision of taxation
is considered given the chances for the chargeability is
remote.
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RBE—Z—hHF=A=+—HIEFE &
£B 2= %M B 2R AGood Start Group
Limited RERFIA B BHMEHBAHAZS
—HEMAZ+TABZARBAANE - STEHE
RoIBZNER T ERHEE 2 BN
RPIPIS 8 FE Bt 0 Al 4 4% 15,000,000 78 7T &2
20,000,00077T ° Good Start Group Limited
BEEE FRIEFR -_ZE—MFER A =-+=H
RRREE - HABBNERE LFF -

RZTE—NFNAZ+HAB  BBRREEESY
(TZEGDEFHERIABRBAEE 2
i o AEBIREEEEPIREEBN B RELL
BrikRE EF - RZZE—HWE+=_AN
B AREBAZERELYIF EHFR2F - &F
AR FPER IEETTH o MINE oA F5 R S K 2
Mz EFRA - A5BABFRMD LHFE
& K F 815 - & #BGood Start Group
Limited LR E FTE] S BRI Wik EE £ < B
W B AZMRFIMGSHAST  REAREH#H
W R 8RS 2 BRI - RIS BRI
W OIRBRPDEDIEFH R - SR ERTA
BEMETK A ZRELTIEEME -



Notes to the Financial Statements

A B ¥ R M

44

45

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LlABlLlTlES (continued)

If the Group’s appeal for the year of assessment 2009 and
2010 is eventually unsuccessful and if the same basis of
taxation applies for subsequent years of assessment from
2011 to 2014, the Group will have to pay approximately
HK$151,000,000 of Macau Complementary Tax for its mass
market business in Macau since 2009. Pursuant to the Macau
Complementary Tax law, the assessment on an estimated
assessable profit in a year of assessment will lapse in five
consecutive years after that year of assessment, thus no tax
liability was expected for the year of assessment before
2009.

44

AERIAEE @

WAEBR _—TZNFR-Z—FFRTF
EIRH 2 E AR EERTD - i AE A ER AR &
BEARZZE——FET—UF 2 HER
MEE  AEEBEAREBZZSZTNURZ
BEARSEBANRMAASETRD
151,000,000 7T o 1R & R PT BT 15 41 72 Ft
5 R S 2 GRS R A 2 SR A R
ZEMEERTEERFBAR  WEH—
TENFR AR ERE W EEAHEEE -

The Company had no material contingent liabilities at the end REREEAK » NI E I E AN AB(E
of the reporting period.
UNDERWRITING AND SUB- 45 SR D EHEHEARE
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS
Group
rEE
Name of Clients 2015 2014
BEFEW —E-AF —ZT—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Company A ~al A - 36,000
Company B NETN=] 165,985 42,001
Company C ~a)C - 91,800
Company D ~a) D 69,893 -
Company E NI 123,858 -
Company F UNCINS 97,948 -
Company G ~A) G 162,002 =
619,686 169,801

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values
of the underwriting and sub-underwriting arrangements are
insignificant to the Group.

SHUERMEMARAT ) - HAEER
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46

172

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party and connected
transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 17 as follows:

46 EXRFELRBERS

PRt FM B mR BB W 2 X 5 Mgk
Sh - REEEEIT INEXNBEST MAER
5 o

(a) TXEBEASME
TEEBABMSE  REAARAE
SR ZRBE 7 HBE) O

2015 2014

—E—FHEF —E—JOF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT T

Short-term employee benefits REREE R 55,809 46,522
Retirement scheme contribution RIRFTEI R 51 34
55,860 46,556

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (note 9).
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions which are also connected transactions
(“CT”)/continuing connected transactions (“CCT")

46 ERFEEFTRBERZ @

(b) BE-—2-FE=A=+-BHILEE
R REE BT T EABES R
5 REXSHALTRINETZH
x5 (HERS ) HEEEXS

under the Listing Rules.

([HEREXS]) -

Transaction type
under Listing Rules

Name of related party Nature of transaction EFRRAET 2015 2014
BRELAR REME ZREEE ZE-1F —T@OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET  TER
Chu and Li's Family Brokerage income CCT 2,754 1,382
RERFERK % HIGLION HERERS
Maximum amount of IPO financing CCT 557,566 -
RaBRARAEERER SEAER S
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CCT 180,885 116,159
RRRECRER HEMRERS
Interest income CCT 1,930 1,676
FEHA KEMERS
Ho Chi Ho Brokerage income CCT - -
EREE B REWERS
Maximum amount of IPO financing CCT - -
RaBRARAEERER REWERS
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CCT 1,428 =
RRRECRER SEAER S
Interest income CCT 9 -
FLEBA BEMRERS
Directors of subsidiaries Brokerage income CT 73 187
and associates HERION HER S
MBAREER Maximum amount of IPO financing CT - -
HEEAT e ARLREERER BER S
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CT - 1,746
RERESHERE HER 5
Interest income CT - 12
FEHA BER S
Kingston Finance Limited Interest expense CT 71,569 40,658
(note 2) FERX HER S
SHEHBERAT Management fee income (note 1) CT 600 600
(Hfet2) EREWA (Hat1) BER S
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)  Management fee income (note 1) CT 420 600
Limited (note 2) L ONCIERD) HERS
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)  Underwriting commission and CCT 2,964 3,310
Limited (#fit2) financial advisory income RERERS
BiHAE EMBERBA
Mr. Lee Wai Man (note 3) Consultancy fee (note 1) CT 1,000 1,000
FEXEE (M3) BERER(Hit1) BER 5
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah Staff quarter rental expenses CT 894 894
FRERL BIREHEERX HER 5
SAYEMEMEARAT ) B —RAEER 173
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)

174

(b)

(continued)

For the continuing connected transactions above, the
independent non-executive directors have reviewed
and confirm that the continuing connected transactions
are in the ordinary and usual course of business, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in page 173 of the Annual Report in accordance
with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Notes:
1. This transaction was transacted at a price agreed
between the parties and in accordance with the

agreement.

2. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah had controlling interest in the
company.

8 Mr. Lee Wai Man is the father of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.

Kingston Financial Group Limited / Annual Report 2015
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47 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
REPORTING DATE

(i)

(iif)

Subsequent to the year end date, 1,500,000,000
convertible preference shares of HK$0.02 each in the
capital of the Company were converted into
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the
capital of the Company.

On 19 May 2015, the Company submitted a proposal
pursuant to Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules to the
Stock Exchange on the spin-off and separate listing of
its financial services business (‘“Financial Services
Business”) on the main board of the Stock Exchange
("Proposed Spin-off”). The Proposed Spin-off is at an
early stage. No application for the listing of the Financial
Services Business has yet been made.

The Proposed Spin-off is subject to various conditions,
including the final decision of the Board and the
approval of the Stock Exchange. Accordingly, there is
no assurance that the Proposed Spin-off will take place
or if it does, when it will take place.

On 25 June 2015 (after trading hours), the Company
and the Placing Agent entered into the Placing
Agreement pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 1,761,250,000
Placing Shares at the Placing Price of HK$2.20 per
Placing Share to the Placees who and whose beneficial
owners shall be Independent Third Parties. Four
placees were identified to take up all the Placing
Shares. It is expected that the maximum gross
proceeds and net proceeds from the Placing will be
HK$3,874.75 million and approximately HK$3,835.80
million, respectively. The net proceeds from the Placing
are intended to be used for expansion of the Financial
Service Business and further strengthening its working
capital. The Company proposes to seek the grant of the
Specific Mandate from the Shareholders at the SGM for
the allotment and issue of the Placing Shares. Details
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
26 June 2015.

47 BEBRFEARSH

() REEFLERR ARABRARER
HMECRB TZARELKSA
1,500,000,0008% & % # & &N A 7
1,500,000,000 % % 75 7R & I [ 1E.0.02

BT EEA

(i) R-E—AFEHEATHIE  ADAR
& _E TR B8 15 THFE A ¥5 5| M B &R P
B2 —HFE RAEEDIFE SR
RS 27 ([ & B ARFS Z75 1) FE B 3 P

ETRBLET(RFEDHR]) - 2

E=aN
=)

TR BB o HART S BART

FEBIEH LA o

BEOWANTAZRGMHTAEE

BREFRELRERERE
HE - Btk - BT REFERZD

b S FAT
wge

T AMEEREET FTEEM

BRI -

iy RZE—AFNA-+THEHXSHER
% AREREERERIET RS HE -
Bl ARABREKGERZEEREER
BRERNZEEETREE KK 2208
7T MAEE AR E &% 1,761,250,000

L= v

AEAREARBEEZE

HwHEBANHYABIE=T  c EERE
BRI E AR AREBRERE

iy - MR EFEHZ &M
#EE K P S RKIR O R A

===

518
=

3,874,750,0007% 7T & 493,835,800,000
BT BB BB 2B RIBFREEA
EER RSB RE— P maH
BEE®  c ARAIEBRBRREFAS
AR R = R R A AR B
BTRERD - FHIBHN AR A A 5
B-E—RFNA-+RBZAM -
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48 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48 #t/EMIEH|EK

The financial statements were approved and authorised for SRR ER T RAFEAA=1THESE
issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2015. [ R IR AT o
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